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ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A. Aoooyrrs rnd Abbcrirtios

BUC

FY

ICPAK

IPSAS

NT

OCOB

OAG

OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

SAGAs

SC

Bomet Universiry College

Financial Ycar

Institute of Certified Public Accountans ofKenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

National Trcasury

Office of the Controller of Budget

Office of the Auditor General

Occupacional Safery and Healch Act of 2OO7

Public Frnance Management

Propeny Plant & Equipment

Public Scctor Accounting Standards Board

Semr-Autonomous Govemment Agencies

Statc Corporarions

B Glocsary of Tams

fi&rc;ry ffolgmt- Members of Management direcdy entrusted with the resporsibility of financial

resources of the organisation

Coqentir: Ycar- Means the prior pcriod
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
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HISTORICAL BACKGROUNG OF THE TJNIVERSITY

facts about Bomet University College

Bomet University college (A Constituent college of Moi University) was established through

Legal Notice No. 145 published in the Kenya Gazette Supplement No.ll4 of 276 July, 2017.

It is the first and the only University College in Bomet County

On 29s September,20lT the First Council was appointed through Gazette Notice No 10150 and

l0l5l for a period ofthree (3) years

On 29th September, 2020 the first Council's term lapsed

On 86 July 2022,, the current Council was appointed through Gazette Notice Vol. Cxxiv - No.

l3l for a period ofthree (3) years

On 25s January, 2019 the Cabinet Secretary of Education appointed Prof. Ann K Nangulu as

Principal, Prof. George o. orwa as Deputy Principal (Academic and student Affairs) and Prof.

Loice C. Maru as Deputy Principal (Administration and Finance)

The University College presented forty+wo (42) undergraduate students, one (l) Postgraduate

and one ( l) Diploma student to graduate on 22nd December 2022

Quick
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Entity Information and Management (continued)

'lhe principal activity of the tlniversity College is to provide university education through

teaching, training, research and outreach,

VISION, MISSION AND CORE VALUES

ViSION
To be a premier Green I Tniversity in fostering research excellelrce in Science,

'f echnology and Innoration lbr sustainability.

iVIISS IO N

To prolide a con<lucive environment fbr discovery, preservation and dissemination of
knowledge; to nurture critical inquiry, creativity and engagement lbr social transformation

and adrrancement ol' humanity.

( ()|il, \ \l t I

Integrity
Transparency
Respect

Patriotisnr
Accountability
Commitment

As a I Tniversity Community, we believe in quality, pragmatic teaching, leaming,
originality, inclusiveness itr management, hamessing knowledge and being a multi-

disciplinary institution of quality and innovative research for sustainable developmenL

Green University for sustainability

vlt
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MEMBERS OF THE UNI!'ERSITY COUNCIL

The Profiles for the University Council Members who were rn office during the period ended 30 June,
2023 are presented here below:

CHAIRPERSON

ProJ Simon Eric Mitema

PhD(UoN), Msc(uoN), BSc(tloN)

Yo& r95r

Prof Simon Eric Mitema holds rhe Bachelot of Veterinary Medicine, MSc and PhD in Pharmacology and Toxicology ftom

the Universiry of Nairobi. He is a Professor ofVeterinary Pharmacology and Toxrcology and formetly served as Charrman,

Deparrmenr ofPublic Hca.lth, Pharmacology end Toxicology and Dirccot, Cence for Inremecional Colleboretion and Lrn]<s.

Hc hes supervised 8 PhD and 15 Mrsrers Sudents' Ptojects to completion and hs publshed 52 peer-revicwed scientific

papcrs and 20 confctence papcrs. He is a Member of rhe Africen LJruon Expert on residues of Vctcrinary drugs rn food es

well as Member of rhe Nationel Acrion Plan on Antrmicrobial Rcsistance (AMR)

ProJ Isaac Kosgey,

Fl<frbw,b
YoB:r965.

PhD (Weningen tlnivenity), MSc (Weningen univenity), B.Sc

(Egerton University).

Prof. Isaac Kosgey is a Professot of ArumaI Scicnces (furimal Brccdrng and Gcnetrcs) and

currL.nrh rhc Vicc Chancdlot of Moi Univcrsrr;i. He served previously es thc Depury Vice Ch""..11".

(Adrninistration, Finance and Development) at Laikipia Uruversiry.

He holds a Doctor of Phi-losophy in Animal Sciences and a Masrcr of Science degree in Anirnal Sciences from Weorngen

Universiry, Necherlaods. In addidon, he holds a Bachelor of Science in Animal Producrion from Egerton University.

Diploma in [:w from Mounr Kenya Universiry, and a Mrster of Busincss Adminisrration from Kenyatta Universrty. He

holds a Bachdor of Laws dcgtee (LLB) ftom rhe Open Uruversiry ofTanzania, Tanzania.

vlll
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ProJ Anne Kisalta Nangulu,

S..r!apy

YoB: 1963

PhD(WestVtrginia Uniwrsity), IvlA(uoN), BA(uoN)

Ptof Aone Nengulu holds a Bechclor ofAns Dcgrcc (History) &om thc Univcrsity ofNeitobi

(UoN), Master of Aru (History) from UoN, PhD in History ftom Wcsr Virgirua Univcrsicy,

USA. She has trained in Queliry Assurance in Univetsiry/Highet Education

Shc has cxtensive cxpericnce in teaching, t.scarch and menagement in Univcrsiry education. She served as *rc Depury

Commission Secrcrery in chargc of Quality Audirs and Standlrds at rhc Commirsion of Univcrsiry Educeuon. Also scrucd

es Acting Dcpury Vicc-Chancellor, Acedcmic, Research and Extension at Moi Universiry and Sccretery to Scnetc- She hrs

also scwcd es Dean School of Ans and Social Sciences end Director Qualiry Assutance et Moi Univcsiry. Ste is the

Principd and secretary ro Council at Bomct Universiry College and Professor of History ar Moi Univeoiry.

Mr. Martin MuSembi,

Mab
YoE:r962.

MBA (x€[,tu), LLB (uoN) CPS (K) Dip. trw (l(sl).

Mr. Manin Mugembi is r-he Managing Parmer et Mithege & Ktiuki Advocates wi*r more than 30

years' cxperience in lrgal Praccice. He G a Commissioner for Oaths and Notery Public.

Hc hol& r Masret in Busincss Adrninisrradon (Human Rcsource Manegcmcnt), Kenya Mcthodist Uoivcrsiry. He holds

Bachclot of[:ws (LLB. Hons), Universiry of Nairobi and Diplome in [:w (dip. [.aws) Kcnya School of l-aw.

Hc previously served rs a Member of rhe Irrsurance Appeals Tribunal and had also servcd es Direccor widr Agticulrural

Dcvclopmcnt Corporation (ADC).

Metnbcr ofseveral Profcssional Bo&cs; Lew Sociery of Kenya, East Aftica l,aw Sociery, and Cenified Public Sectetarics

of Kcnya among others.

Eng. Peter Hirarn,

lalr.}g

Yo&,953

lr4Sc (Southanlon Uniwrsity), B$ uoN)

Eng. Peter Hiram is a Professional Enginccr wirh over 40 years' posrgraduace cxpedcncc in FcasibilirT

Srudies, Dcsign and Constmction Supewision of Highway Ptojeco in Rural and Urben ereas in Kenya and other Aftcan

countrrcs.

He hol& e lv{sc. Ciul end Sructural Engineering, Southamptoo (tX) md Bachelor of Scicnce in Civil Engrneenng,

Univctsiry of Neirobi.

4

tt5

I

,,

a
, t

tx



Bomet University College
(A Constituent College of Moi University)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

He is a Member oflnstitution ofEngineers ofKenya, Registered Engincer (Kenya) and Registered Consulung Engineer

Mr. Chm*ut Butaki,

llat}a
\oB: 944.

M& (ilniwrsity oflr4anltoba), M.Ed (uON), Bsc, (l"lniversity oJEest Atica)

Mr. Reubcn Cherukut Buraki hol& a NGc rn Agriculturc ftom the Uruvcrsity of Manitobe, Canada. He elso

holds a Bachelor Sciencc degrec in Chemistry and Boteny ftom thc Universiry of East A6ica.

Hc prcviously worked as Director rc Nadonal Agriculcural Research Ccntre (KARI) litale. He also worked rs the

Managing Dircctor et Kcnya Farmerc Association (KFA), Nakuru.

Hc also worked as a Produce Executrvc ar Kenya Farmers Association. Mt. Cheruk rt 
"lso 

work.d 
"s 

a Senior Agriculrural

Officcr, Njoro, under the Mnistry of Agriculture.

Hc prcviously workcd es Rcsearch Of6ccr at Kenya Breweries Limitcd.

Ms. Cluistine OdLrogi

R? Sarb Dqrytiad d lhiadty
Ff^rh.ilRadr

YoB; 1974

MA (Cardfwale$,

NG. Christine Oduogi t en Assiscant Dircctor ar d.re Ministry ofEducation Headquartcrs Jogoo House, Rcpublic ofKenya
sincc 30d May 2022. Ivts. Oduogi w:s postcd to thc Mimstry of Education from dre Ministry of Informetion,
Communication end tcchnology from I" July 2014 to work in che Admrnistration seccion, commtrnrcacron urut I\zIs.

Oduogi is currendy e member of rhe National Focal Points of the East Afticen Communiry Risk end Cruis
Communicetion Sub-wotking Group. The partnet Stetcs membets ete drawn ftom tle Minisries ofAgdcultute, Livestock,
Fiucetion, and Hcalth, immigtation, toutism wildhfc end trade.

Rev. Dr. Roben Lang'at

lllaln}a

Yo8: 1967

PhD,( Drew Univenity), M (WBS), BA (Hlghtands tln Ylsity)

Rev. Dr. Rober Leng'at is the Ptesidrng Bishop of Aftica Gospel Church, Kenya. Hc hol& PhD rnd a Mastct of
Philosophy ftom Drcw University. He also has a Mestcr of Ars in Thcology from Wcslcy Biblical Seminary (WBS). Hc

has a Bachdors 'degrce in Thcology ftom Kenya HiglJan& Univcrsiry.

Has published sevcrel Iotemrl Academic Journals in Theology and Missions. Prevrotuly sewed as Assrsrant Academic

Dean at WBS and Hcad of Deparnncnc ar Kabarek Universiry. Hc is curtendy the Chairperson of Tcnwek Mission

Hospiul in Bomet Counry.

x
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Ms. MonicaAsuna,

Ra l{donrl Trtuay

Yo8: r97o.

IlA (Uniwrsity oJMala'r,i), BA (Moi Uniwrsity)

lvG. Monica Asuna is a Director of Plenning at rhe Nadonal Treasury and Planning, Kcnya, wi:.h 24 years' cxperience

specifically under the Minisrry ofFinance which u now The Nationa.l Treasury.

She hol& a Mester degree in Economics from the Univetsiry of Malawi and BA in Economics from Mo Univcrsiry. She

is rhe Head of United Natioru Agencics Division, Development Effectiveness Secrcrariar and Iovesror Rcladors Unic, in
rhe Rcsource Mobilizetron Deparmrenr, Drectorate of Public Debr Managemenr Office at rhc Narional Treasury and

Planning. Previously, she wotkcd in the former Monopolics and Prices Commission in areas of discoureging Resrrictive

Trade Pt:cciccs, Rcview of Mctgcrs and Acquisirion applicarions (1998 -2007);

Ms. Grare Khayota,

YoB: 1962.

IUSc (Ku), B.Ed (Sience) (Ktl)

NG. Gracc KJreyora is che Actrng Ckcf Exccutrve Officcr/Adminttrtor rr Fricn& Lugulu Mission
Hospiul. She pteviously servcd as Counry Executrve Commrttcc Member (CEC) in Chrtgc of Gcndcr and Culturc,

Bungoma Counry.

She hol& Mrster ofSciencc rn Microbiology ftom Kenyarta Universiry. She also hol& a Bechelor of Education (Scicncc)

in Botmy and Zoology fiom Kcnyetta University.

She has over 20 yeats' expedcncc in teaching at various Schools. She has also worked as a Coordinaror for Exchangc

Programmes with schools in vaious countries induding USA, Europc and Asia

xt
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KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM

The Key management personnel who held office during the period ended 30 June,

2023 nd who had direct fiduciary responsibilities are presented here below:

Prof. Anne Kiroko Nongulu, Pdncipol
PhD(West Virginio University), MA(UoN), BA(UoN)

Prof. Ioicc Chcmngdich Maru, Dcpuly
Principcl. (Adminirlrotion & Finoncc)
PhD (Moi University), MPhil (Moi University),
BBM (Moi Universityl, HND (KITC), Diplomo
(KTTC)

Prof. Grorgc Oliono Orwo,
Drpuly Principol, (Acodrmic & Studcnts
Affoirr)
PhD (JKUAT). MSc (JKUAT), BSc (JKUAT).

CPA. Lorino Obonyo,
Chirf Accounlanl
MBA (Moseno UniYersity),
B.com (CUEA), CPA (K).

,.-!1'ltI
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In order to facrlicate the smooth running of its

affatrs, the University College Council

esrablishes such committees with the

membership and with such terms of reference as

it may deem fit. The followrng committees were

in place during the Period ending 30 ]une,

2023.

Finance, Administration, Strategy, Building
and Development Committee
Audit, &. Compliance Committee
Human Resource, Governance and Staff
Disciplinary Committee
Academic, Research, Extension, Student

Affairs and Sealing Commirtee

The Universiry Council nominares the

Chairperson of each committee of the Council

provided thar in the absence of rhe Chairperson

of any commitree, the members present and

constituting a quorum may elect one person

ftom among rhem to chair the meering. The

Chairperson of the University Council, the Vice

Chancellor and the Princrpal are ex-olficio

members of every committee of the Council.

i. Finmcc,A&dniltt2tiod,Strat4r,

Building md Dtrdop,m.cat Cmrmittce

Thc Committee provides oversight and advrce

on matters relating to the Universiry College

Gnancial positron, annual estimates, resource

mobilizarion and rnvestmenrs and pay due

regard to the necessity to refer matters of maior

importance to the Council for final approval.

Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Committees of the University College Council

The Committee advises and oversees the

straregic development; physical facilicies and

infrastructures plan;

ii Audit and Cooplimcc Coflrrnittcc

The Commicree oversee and advises on marters

relating to the safery of assets; operacions of

adequare systems; conrrol processes, preParatron

of accurate financial repons in compliance wich

Iegal and statutory requrrements and standards;

intemal and external audics; risk management

strategies;

iii Ffuoan Rcsantcc, Crovcorncc md

Statr Dnddinery Cmittcc

The Committee oversees instirurional

govemance; rhe formulation and subsequent

monrtoring/revrew of policres and strategies on

employment of all Universiry Staff, induding

policies on recmitmenr and selecrion, staff

development and training, performance

management schemes and salanes,

administrative practices and other conditions of

iv. Acdalric, Racarc}" E*osion"

Surdtat Afiais rnd Scatng Ccnoitt c

The Commitree advises on implementation of

academic and research programmes; quality

assurance for excellence in reaching, research

and innovatron and protection of intellectual

servrce.

asseas.
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MEMBERSFIIP TO THE COMMITTEES

FINANCE, ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY, BIJII.DING AND DEVEISPMEI{T COMMITTEE

t.

ii.

iii

iv

Eng. Peter Hiram Nduati

Ms. Grace Khayota

Ms. Christine Oduogi

lv{s. Monica Asuna

Principal

Charrman

Member

Representing SDLJER

Represenring the National Treasury

Secretary

Chairman

Member

Member

Representing SDUER

Senate Representative (Moi University)

Secretary

Chairman

Member

Representing the National Treasury

Secretary

ACADEMIC RESEARCFI, E)MENSION STUDENT AFFAIRS AIJD SALING COMMITTEE

l.

ii.

rii.

iv.

vi.

Grace Khayota

Eng. Peter Hiram Nduati

Mr. Reuben Chcrukut Buakr

lvls. Chrisrine Oduogi

Prof. Isaac N. Krmengi

Principal

HUIIfAN RESOURCE, @VERNAI{CE AI.ID STAFF DISCPLINARY COMMTTEE

i. Rev. Dr. Roben K. l.angat Chairman

ii. Mr. Reuben Chcrukut Butaki Member

iii. Mr. Martin Mugambi Mithega Member

iv. Principal Secretary

AUDIT AND COMPIIANCE COMMTTEE

i. Mr. Martin Mugambi Mithega

ii. Rev. Dr. Robert K. Langat

iii. Ms. Monica Asuna

iv. Intemal Auditor

xlv
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

I am pleased ro presenr the Annual Report and Frnancial Statements for Bomet University Collegt for the

FinancialY ear 2022/ 2023.

Bomer Universiry College continues to be a Premrer Green University in fostering Research Excellence in Sctence,

Technology "r,i Innor"rion for advancement of humaniry. The University College ensures that policies,

pro..ss", 
"nd 

strategies are aligned in order to realise this vision as well as ensuring chat the University College

stnves to attaln world class competttiveness.

The University College operared in Lne wrth the Master Plan 20I8-2068 and the Srrategic Plan 20I8-2023

which has come ro an end. The Straregic plan guides in financial planning, development of academrc programs,

process ef6ciency, stakeholder engagement and overall infrastructure development.

The Universrty College Councrl has adhered to the MWONGOZO code of Govemance for State ColPotations.

This &amework focuses on addressing matcers on effectiveness of the council, transpar€ncy, accountability, risk

management, intemal controls, ethical leadership and Good Corporare Govemance.

While rhe Universiry has conrrnued to make grear srrides in pursuit ofir prrorities, it continues to face challenges

in terms ofconstrained financial resources. The University College was not able to carry on with rhe devclopment

of irs flagship projecr: Constructron of I No. Tuirion Block, I No. Library Block, I No. Multi- purpose Hall
and 2 No. Hostel Blocks due ro lack of Budget Allocation to this panrcular Project in the Financia.l Year

2022/2023. Orher challenge rhe Universrry College has faced is to hire or promote senror academic and

administrative saff ro provide leadership rn rheir respective areas of expertise. The Council has requcsted the

case of inadequate senior scaff to the Minrstry of Education and The Natronal Treasury to Prrorrtrze
apporormen[s of these positrons. The University College also faces another challenge for not having acquired

any tides for any of its land parcels

On behalf ofthe Uoiversrry Council, I rhank the Governrnent for rherr invaluable suppon, Chancellor md Vice

Chancelor of Mor Unrversrry, Managemenr, BUC senior management, staff, our dedicated Scudents, local

communrry and orher stakeholders. Together we shall stnve to steer the University College to grearer herghts as

we work rowards the awatd of rhe Chaner in the near future.

Ptoe Simon Edc Mitema
Ctrirpcrso of Comcil

xv
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REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL

Bomec University College has been in operation srnce 27'r July 2017 when rt was Gazetted as a Conscituent College of

Moi University. The University College is very srraregic in offering academic programmes that meet the needs of the

National Agenda and Society for the benefir of humanrcy. As a Green University wrth a focus on the Green Concept u

caprured in BUC 2018 Master Plan rhat rs consistenr wrth the Strategic Plan for 2018-2023 aims at delivering quality

and relevant academic Programme. Financial corutrarnts are a major challenge ro universities rn Kenya and Bomer

University College is not an exceprion. In order ro minimize this nsk, the Universiry College hu outlined vanous ,ncome

alternatives that *ill reduce rhe financing dependence on The Narional Treasury.

The University College has a toal ofone hund.ed and forty-eight (148) staff rn post in teaching and admin,strrctve

caregories. The numbers of sraff ate scill not adequate for the University College and therefote implementation of
2022 / 2023 F;nancial Year approved Esrablthment is ongoing.

BUC has a total student's population of Two Thousand Four Hundred and srxty-six (2465). As a newly

esublished University College, Bomet Universiry College strll rely to a large extenr on the suppon from the Government

rhrough the State Deparrmem for Hrgher Educacion and Research. The current critical needs for the Unrversiry s ro
complete the infrastructurc devdopments in order to meet its Core Mandate and Qualrry standard requiremens for

service delivery. It is also anticipared that operational expenses wi.ll increase rn the subsequent financial year as the sraff

and the student population expands.

C{itd hor.tr!
The Government approved a Capiral Developmenr Granc rn 2016/2017 Financial Year for the construccion ofTuicion
Block, Library, Multipurpose Hall and 2 Hostels all totalling Ksh,l, 391,982,+69. However, inadequate funding rs

causrng delay rr the rmplementation ofthe Project. At the moment, the overall completion ofdre Project is 50% with;

Tuitron Block (99o/o), Lbrary (55%), Mulripurpose Hall (90%) and Hostels ar (4%). The only Capital

Devdopment Project that is on-going and funded by rhe Exchequer is the Administrarion Block, Lecture Theatres

and Associated Works.

At rhe rime of its establshment, Bomet Unrversrty College did not heve infrastructural facilrties except fot the Academrc,

Science and Technology buildrng that was inhetited from Boma Technical Training Institute (mentored by Eldorer

Nationai Polytechnic).

On behalf of Managemenr, I would lke to express our sincere gratitude and appreciation to the Government ofKenya,

Moi Universrry and Bomec University College for rhe immense suppon accorded to us during the year. I a.lso want to

thank BUC staffand students, other sponsors arld all the stakeholden for dre hdp and suppon that we continue to

receive.

H*, ne Nants u

Hnripal od Sccacary to Cqmcil

xvl
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Dete

STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETER]VIINED

OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2022D023

BUC has 8 srrategic pillars/ themes/issues and objemives within the current Strategic Plan for the FY

2023 / 2023-'fhese strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows:

Pillar /theme/issue I: To develop cxcellence in teaching, leaming and innovation.
pillar/rheme/issue 2: To provide a vibrant inrellectual climare for qualiry screntiOc rescarch

Pillar/rheme/rssue 3: To develop srace ofthe art green Library.
pillar/theme/issue 4: To attracr, develop and retain vibrant academic and non-academic Human

Resources for sustainable performance of the University.

Pillar/rheme/issue 5: To develop state-of-the-art green physical facrlrties and ICT Infrastructure for the

Universiry Col.[ege.

Pillar/theme/issue 5: To develop viable programmes and acdvicies thar enhances Srudents Welfarc

Prllar/theme/issue 7: To establish and maintain a prudent financial management system.

Pillar/theme/issue 8: To establish and maintain good corporate govemance fot quality service delivery

BL|C devdops its annual work plans based on rhe above I pillars/Themes/Iss.."s. Assessment of the Board's

performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The University College achieved its

performance tatgets set fot the FY 2022-2023 penod for its 8 strategic pillars
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ormcohip
Bomet Unrversity College was estab[shed as a

constituent college of Mor Unrversity through thc

Legal Notice No. I45 pubLshed in the Kenya

Gazerte Supplement No. I 14 o( 27'' July, 2017.

The Universrty College is owned by Government of

Kenya.

t. Raponr;bility of tfu Univcnity Collcgc

Cdndl

The Universrty College Council is responsible and

accounrable to the Governmenr of Kenya through

the Stare Department of University Education and

Research for ensuring that the University comphes

with the Universities Acr 2OI2, the Mor University

Srarutes (20I3) REV 202I, Legal Notice No. I45

thar established Bomet University College, 2017

and adheres to the hrghest standar& of colporate

governance as prescribed rn the State Corporations

Acr and the code of Govemance for state

corporatron (Mwongozo).

2, Rolcr od Rmctions of thc Cormcil

The main role of the Council is oversrght.

Functions of the Councrl Includes: Approval of

pohcies, approval of the Budger and Financial

Statements

3. Rauraccatim of ttrc Univctsity Collcgc

Council n:obcrs.

The Universiry College Council members other

than the Pnncrpal and the Vice Chancellor who are

ex-of6cial members do not receive a salary. They are

however paid a sitting allowance for every meetrng

attended. The srrting allowance paid co the Council

Members. The Charlperson of the Council is

encitled to pa7'rnent of Honararia. All the Councrl

payment is drsclosed rn note 5 of che financral

statements.

4. Cmf,ic of Intcrtst

The Counc,l has complied with Mwongozo

provisions paragraph I.3 chat expects each Council

member to act honestly at all trmes and not to place

themselves in a srruarion where their petsonal

interest conflict with those of the organization. In

addition, in compliance with paragraph I.I6,

Council members drscloses all real or perceived

conflicr of rnreresr regisrered in a regisrer

maintained and updated accordingly.

However, the Council rs yet to develop a policy on

Conflict of Interest as envisaged by paragraphs 2.6

and 4.3. The Pohcy rs among those scheduled for

development to provide a framework to manage

these conflicts

5. RisL lv{rorgcm.ot and Govaaancc Ardit

The identification and management of risk is a

continuous process lrnked to the achievemenr ofthe

Unrversity's ob;ectives The Council rs responsible

fot rrsk management and has an approved policy and

procedure documenr for risk management. The

Universrry Colege conducts risk assessment on
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coqltcdnmiccr
I. Supply, Insallation and Connnissioning

ofSolar Systems

2. Roo6ng of Court Yard at Grecn Tuition
Block

3. Proposcd Tilc Rcmcdial Work at Bomct

Univcrsicy Collcgc
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I

for Research Centre and Start-Up Village
Centre Phase II

6. Construction of 2NO. Ablucron Blocks

7. Proposed Trle Remedial Work at Bomet

University College

8. Modification of Sire House for Training
and Extensron. Demonstration Rooms

and Partitioning of Offices at Green

Tuinon Block

Coostruction and Ertcosion of Ablution
Blodrs and Kitchcndtc, Collebontioru
Intcm2tionrl and Tnining C.otrt Unit fot
Rc*ar& Ccntrc and Stert-Up Villagc Ccntrc

Phasc tr KES. 13,9083 I 7.00

(orr.h.,.rd r.r.,Nr'6.r.nd n.'.'.{ Crix.ru^ r

3. Constrtion of 2 No. Ctarcratot Houscs

i

coin.(n.^ o, r.ry<h core?r6 r s.'.ill sd tr6,n( c.{r {J.trr

frrIirr
IIIIT

--rJ:r
2. Fabdetioa of Eqgipm.cnt and

Stotegc Fecility for Rcscat&
Collr$ontion, Intorutiond rnd
Tniniry CcorlcluniB KES
9,527,629-U

Proposad Construation ol 2 No- 6enerator Houses

4. Cortnrction of 2,lIO. Abftrtion Blodrs

,_-*{E.--., .7, -

l
Co.rt.u.non or 2NO abluton Blockr
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ONGOING PROJECTS

Following the Nacional Governmenr drrecrive of

no new development projeos wrll be undertaken

before On-going Projects are completed, Bomet

Universiry College undenook the following

Pro,ects:

I. Construcion of I No. Tuition Block, I
NO. Library Block, I No. Multipurpose
Hall and 2No. Hostel Blocks,

2. Construction of Administration Block,

Lecture Theatre & Assocrated Works.

These two Projects share the same IFMIS Number.

The Capital Development Funds received in the

Financia.l Years 2O2l / ZO22 and 2022 / 2023 w erc

channelled to the Construction of Administrarion

Block, Lecture Theatre & Associated Works.

The Construction of Admrnisrration Block,

Lecture Theatre and Associated Works was

informed by Commrssion of University Education

(CUE) recommendations that both Teaching and

Non-Teaching Staff should have Offices that

adhere to rherr standards. These pro;ects are

funded by Caprtal development grants.

I. Costnrction of I No. Tuitioo Blo&, I
NO. Library Blodl I No. Itlubip,urposc
Flall md 2No. Hostd Blo& KES.

1385,982,469

lr!
ta! lF!. I

L
roposed Construction of Library Block

Concuction of Administntioa Bloch
Lcortc Thcatrc Sl Associ:trd Wotls
KES 110,+25,696.

hpo*l Cmrtr(r,on ol &mn*.rd Br..r, L.dva ln..m & atE.Gn $a.ri

INTERNAL PROJECTS
CIJE recommended that the institurion should

have laboratories to support students, and che

lecture rooms and halls should conform to rhe

stipulated guidelines. It was also noted that rhe

washrooms were not suf6cient to serve the students

and staff

These projects are as listed below:

I. Supply, Installation and Commissioning
ofSolar Systems

2. Fabrication of Equipment and Storage

Faciliry for Research Collaboracion,

Internadonal and Training Cenrt./U.,its
3. Construction of 2 No. Generator Houses

4. Roofing of Court Yard at Green Turtion
Block.

-5. Construction and Extension of Ablution
Blocks and Kitchenette, Collaboration,

]nternacional and Training Cenre Unit
xxvtl
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and cash equivalents include cash in hand and

deposie held with banks.

T(ATERIALARREAR,S IN
STATUTORY/ThIANCIAL OBLIGATIO}.IS

Currendy rhe University College has no material

arrears in pending bills, rax default, outstanding

Staff and Pension obligadons on the Pension

Scheme as it meets ell its statutory obligations as

thcT fall due.

Thcrc is no major financial rmpropriery reponed

by inrernal audir/ Audir and Compliance

Commircce of the College Council and extcrnal

auditors. Consequendy, the Universiry College has

responsive govemance strucrurcs and practice in

the Council and top managcmcnt.
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The University College Councrl has overall

responsibilicy for the establishment and oversight

of the University College's risk management

framework. The inscirurion's risk management

policy has been established to identifr and analyse

the risks faced by the University Col.lege, set

appropriate risk [imits and conttols, and monitor

r'isks and adherence to limits. Risk managemenr

policies and systems wifl be reviewed regularly to

reflect changes in economic condirions and the

University College's activities.

i) lv{r*ct dsL - Lor Surdtot Eorolm:nt

The Universiry College is more likely to experience

low srudenr enrolment due to compecirion which

may result in the reduction of revenue.

li) l-iq$firy dltb -I-or Fu.li'g

Liquidity risk is the likelihood that rhe BUC wrll

not be able to meet its financial obligations as and

when rhey fall due. The University College's

approach co managing liquidity is to ensure, as far

as possible, that it wrll always have sufficient

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under

borh normal and stressed condrtrons, without

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to

rhe University College's reputation. Typically, the

University ensures lhat it has sufficienr cash on

demand to meet expected operational expenses for

a period of 30 days. This excludes rhe potential

impact of extreme circumstances that cannot

reasonably be predicted, such as natutal disasters

and polidcal violence. All capiul investments are

funded by the Government. However, Low

funding levels by the government may result to

liquidity issues and slow development in

infrastructure which can lead to congcstion &

inadequate facilities.

iii) Ctdit RilL-Sul&nt D$tors

Credit risk is the likely financial loss to the

Universiry College if a customer or counter Party

ro a financial instrument fails to meet its

contractual obligations, and arises principally from

the organization's recetvables from cusromers.

BUC receives fees from srudents and rhe smdenm

are not allowed to sit for exams if they have not

cleated fees which minimizes the credit risk

exPosure,

Clessi6catim of Ctcdit Rish Bcrring Assco

The uble below represents Universiry College's

maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of
the Period under review.

Al[ the University's College's receivables arc fully

performing and are expected to be received. Cash

ASSETS qI IV.

Curra Assas KES

Cash and Cash Equivalenm 228.784,389

Receivables from Exchange

Transactions
12,290,O42
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COMPLIANCE WIIH STATUTORY REQI'IREMENTS

rem1ssl0n

trme

Z I.ISSF

The NSSF Act, 2013, Laws of Kenya, requires

employers to deduct and remit NSSF deductions

on monthly basis and remit the same on or before

9'h of the following month. The University College

has been remitting the deductions to NSSF on

The University College complies wich smrutory

requirements as follows:

I. PAYE

Income Tax Act, 1973, Laws ofKenya, places on

employers an obligarion to deduct and remit

monthly rncome tax for all employees and be

remitted to the pay master general on or before 96

day of rhe following month. The Universrry

College has complied with rhe deadline for

I5 days after the end of each month. The

University College has effected HELB loans as

required and submited the same within the

stipulated fifteen days after the end of each month.

5. NITA

Industrial Training Levy Act CAP 237 requires

employers ro pay KESs 50/= per employee,

including temporary, casual and apprentices per

month. The University College has effected NITA

paymenrs as required and submitted the same by 96

day of the following month.

The University College is cognizant ofthe fact that

compliance is a contrnuous process. To thrs effect

it has put measures in place to ensure the

institution maintains the required threshold of

compliance to best cor?orate Governance

princrples.

MAJOR RISKS FACINGT}fi ENTITY

The Universiry College's prrncipal financral assets

are, trade receivables and cash and shorr term

deposirs whrch arrse direcrly from irs operations.

The institution has financial liabilities comprising

uade and other payables.

BUC is exposed to the following rrsks:

i) Market risks

iD Lrquidity nsk

iir) Credit risks

3.NHIF

NHIF Act, 1998, Laws of Kenya, requires rhe

employer to deduct the NHIF dues and remit the

sarre on or before rhe 96 of the following month.

The University has complied with the NHIF Act.

4. HELB

HELB Act, 1995, Laws of Kenya, requrres

employers ro deduct from the wages or

remuneration of the loanee(s) the amount of any

loan as insrructed by the Board and submit wirhin
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TOTAL INCOME VER.SLXS TOTAL PEENDITURE

The relarionshrp between income and expendiure is as abulated below'

Inm vccsrs Erpcndiorc

Total Income

Total Expenditure

30 fuac -23
KES

ffi234,635

396J,.t,6r2

WORKINGCAPITAL

The Uruversiry College has had a healthy Working Capiral posicion with posirive Net Current Assets position

as shown below:

PrltioJers 30 |uoc -23

KES

Toal Current Assec 237.251,438

Toul nt I-iabilities 68.960_949

er'W 90
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Annual Report and Financial Statemens ofBUC for the perrod ended June 30,2023 are presented as

per rhe Public Finance Managemem Acr 2OI2, Universities Acr 2012 and the Public Audrt Act 20I5.

The Universiry College recorded an aggregate income of KES 4O6 214,635 at end of the year under review,

wirh rhe recurrent granr from the Exchequer ofKES 3I3,I7O059. Internally generaced revenue stood at KES

93,00|,576 as ar end of the period consisting of Tuition Fee and related income of KES 92,413,O75 aod

other Income ar KES 55I5OI. The planned exchequer to be received ar the end of the perrod for recurrent

expendirure was KES 313,170,059 and the amount was received in futl by 304 June 2023.

INCOME 3OJrmc -23

KES
3 t 3,I70,059

92,413,O75
65I,50I

406234,635

Paniodatl
Exchequer Grants
Tuition & Related Income
Other Income
TOTAL

DPENDITLIRE
Personnel emoluments continued to comprise the largest ponion ofthe expenditure during the peiod ar 78%o

of the toral expenditure while all orher expenses consritured the balance of 22o/o. The mble below illustrates

rhe expenditure trends with the overall total expenditure rising sreadily during rhe period under review.

E@ENDITURE
Paniculers

30 Jrmc-23

To ensure achievement of Academic Excellence, the University Col.lege has concentrared most expenditure on

enhancing teaching in a progressive manner

KES

Employee costs 30-s,559,230

Remuneration of Directors 9,770,872
Depreciation I5,853,70I
Reparrs and marnt€nance 4, I5I,823
Contracted and Insurance Services 2+,952,786
Use of Goods and Services 36,041,I I9
Taal Erpcnscs 396,495,612
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requirements. The University College is committed

to recruit additional academic sraffto comply with

the Commission for Universiry Education

requirements based on availability of funds.

STUDENT POPUI^ATION

BUC had the first batch of Students from Moi

Universiry in 2OI7 /ZOl8 Academic Ycar, and

2018/2019 Academic Year. Since then BUC

Srudents allocated direcdy ro the Institution by

KUCCPS in 2019/2OZO, 202O/2O2r,

2OZI /2022 and 2022/2023 Academic Years.

Scudent numbcrs continue to grow in line with the

Universiry College Straregic Plan as follows.

T6lSnddNrobcs

FY mt9-?Dm Lom-?fr}l 2n2t-?frt2 m22.?D2l

fol
hd.E
fld|r

lllo Irt.12 2{66

The Universicy College currently has srudenrs'

enrolled ptogrammes as indicated below: -

ACADE IIC PROGRAHME ENROLMENT

PhD 10

Masters 14

PGDE 2

Bachelors 2.420

Diploma 16

Certificate 4

Total 2,t166
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE ENTITY OPERATION REVIEW

(iv) School of Pure and Applied Sciences (SPAS)Teaching and research is a key pillar ofall academic

insritutions and in the Quarter ending 30 June,

2023 Bomet University College (BUC) academic

sraff members excelled in many aspects. The

Academic and Srudent Affairs division mandate is

to be a premier Green University in fosterrng

research excellence in Science, Technology and

Innovation for sustainability as outlined in the

vision of rhe University College were achieved.

During rhe Quarrer, the Division organized and

engaged in various core acriviries rhrough its

subdivisions and schools that were geared towards

our vision.

The division of Academic and Student Affairs is

divided into two sub divisions:

(0 Academics

(ii) Studenrs Affairs

ACADEMICS

Under Academics Affairs we have Schools and

Departments headed by the Deans and Chair of

Deparrments' respectively. There are four Schools

in the Division as listed below: -

(D School of Education (SOE)

(i,) School ofArts and Social Sciences (SASS)

(iii) School of Business and Entrepreneurship

(sBE)

Currendy, che Universicy College is offering

programmes from Cernficare ro Docrorare level.

BUC has twenty four (24) Senate approved Ph.D

Programmes, thrrt), two (32) Master Programmes,

Thiny two (32) Bachelor Programmes, four (4)

Diploma courses and three (3) Cenificate courses.

BUC endeavors to develop new programs that suit

the University College's Philosophy and Academic

Niche.

ACADEMCSTAFF

The Universrty College has the following

Academic Sraff; -

The University College rs understaffed

Admrnrstrativc staff to Academic Staff

standing ac 5I%o rc 49%o as compared to the

expected of 3O"/o to TOYo in tandem with the

Commission of University Education

with

ratio

Professors 0

Associate Professors 2

Seniot Lecturers 8

Lecturers 45

Tutorial Fellows 5

Total urrbcr of Ace&rnic Steff 60
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regular basis which informs the internal audit plan.

The Universiry College has a Rrsk Management

Committee which oversee the rrsk management. The

Universiry College has an Internal Audit

department to carry out tisk based internal audir on

quarterly basis. The Univetsrry College Council

through rts Audrr and Complance Committee

received regular repons during the period on

internal control and risk.

Moreover, rhe LJnrversity Col.lege management

conducrs legal compliance reviews which are

reponed to the council. The Unrversity College has

an in-house Assistanr legal of6cer to advice on legal

matters.

5. Statcoat of Coryliancc

The Council Members confirm that Bomet

University College has throughour rhe period

endrng 30 lune,2023 complied with the entire

statutory and regulatory requirements and has been

managed the Entiry in accotdance wrth che pnncrple

of Corporate Governance.

7. Borrd Mcaings

The Councrl and rhe Committees of Council held 4

regular meerrngs and c*o specral meetings.

8. In&rcion, Ttrining cnd Dcydopmcnt

The Councr.l *ent through an rnduction programme

immediately they were appointed.

9, Bosd .nd Mcmbcr Pcdomancc

The Council conducts an annual evaluation to

apprarse rts performance. The Board evaluarion

provrdes an opportunrty for Board members to

idenrifr strengrhs, collective skill gaps and

indivrdual areas of improvement. The Board wrll

also review the performance of each committee

against the agreed Terms of Reference. The Board

wrll also evaluate the performance of the CEO and

Corporatron Secretary.

I0. Procas of Appointment md Rtmoval of

Cqmcil Mccrbcn

Board appoinrments sha.ll be made in line with

Arrrcle 27 of the Constirurron ofKenya.

The Board may recommend the removal of a

member based on non-performance, non-

artendance of meetings, unerhica.l conduct ot as set

out in any consticurive documents or app[icable law.

I I. Succcssioo pLnning

The appointing authonty should ensure that the

tenures of Board members are staggered to €nsure a

phased transition. This is not the case m Bomer

University College as the tenure of the Board

Members will come to an end at the same time as

the Council members were appointed on 8'h July,

2022. The Counci.l has puc in place a succession

plan for both the Council and management and

review the same regularly.

I2 Eristacc of e board cb:rtcr

The Council has pur rn place a Drafr Board Chaner

whrch is under review
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INTERIIAL DEVELOPTEI{T PROJECTS

completed3,455,000 3,455,000 20n4t2021 fn\t2021 21t04t2022 0 '100%
1 Proposed Supply, lnstallation and Commissioning of Solar

Systerm

600/o Terminateds,527,629 5,365,863 12n2t2021 12t08t2021 12n212022 02 Fabrication of Equipment and Storage Facility for Research

Collaboration, lntemational and Training Centre/Units,
0 45o/o Terminated3. Construc'tion of 2 No. qenerator House 2,223,535 666,7s 08/06/2021 04t1212021

0 100% completed4. Roofinq of Cou( Yard in the Green Tuition Block 5,805,410 5,n9,770 03n212022 04t02t 2023
28o/o On going13,908,317 0 $n42022 04t0212023 05 Proposed Extension of Ablution and Kitchenette, Collaboration

lntemational and Training Cenferunit for Bornet University

College PHASE ll
52Vo On going8,746,450 4,373,22s 01t0912022 02n912023 4,500,0006 Construction of 2N0. Ablution Blocks

On going4,111,960 1,334,600 16,f1|t2023 $n712023 300/"7 Modification of Site House for Training and Extension,

Dernonsfation Rooms and Partitioning of Offices at Green

Tuition Block

completed9,450,813 9,450,813 16t0112023 16n712023 0 1000/o8. Proposed Tile Rernedial Work at Bomet University College
4,500,000Totals
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

i) Sustainability Strategy and Profile
The Morto of Bomer Universty ts "Green Universrry for Sustainabihty" whrle the Niche s "Green Economy

{or Sustainabiliy'l The Universrry College is commrrted to rntegrating the green concept in academic

programmes and in its operations to enhance sustainabrlrty.

During the Financial Year 2022/2023 Bomet University College tree growing restoration; and activities to

facilitate sustainable use of the land. During the Financial Year, the University College Council approved

closure of implementation of Strategic Plan 2018-2023; and transition to the Strategic Plan 2023-2028 that

has incorporated planned activities towards enhancing sustainability.

ii) Employee Welfare
In the FY 2022/ 2023 rhe Council and Management commitred to promote Staff Welfare by undertakrng

vanous acrrvirres which were accomplished within the said year. Staff Welfare activites are evidenced in the

Performance Conrract for the FinancialY eat 2022/2023 which included: Pre'rrention of HIV Infection through

implementarion of Maisha I Wellness program; securing a comprehensive medrcal rnsurance cover for srafC

Gender Mainsrreaming; Drsability Mainstreaming: undertaking safety and secunty measures and sensitizing

sraff and students on National Cohesron and Values, Business Re-engrneerrng process as well as Digital

Transformatron.

ii i) Market Place Practices
Bomet [Jniversity College a committed ro conrributrng effectively and efficrently to the achievement of the

nacional development agenda as espoused in the "Borrom Up and Transformation Agenda (BETA) and Kenya

Vision 2030, keeping in mind the specific priorities of the University College. The Vision, Mission, Straregic

Objecrives of the Unirersity College have been aligned to the National Agenda. During che Financial Year

2022/ 2023, rhe Universiry Council approved rhe Strategic Plar, 2018-2023 to enable incorporation of rhe

Strategic Objectives rhey have been aligned ro the Nationa.l Agenda. In its operations, the Unrversrty College

acknowledges and complies with provisrons of the Constitution of Kenya and relevant government regulations.

The University College also supposed rhe Lmit of the trees to be planted in the year under review.

iv) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

In the Financial Yeat 2022/ Z0Z3 Bomet University College (BUC) engaged the local communrty and local

institutrons rn the following ways,

The partnership between BUC and the local schools enabled smdents from Bomet Unrversity College to conduct

their Teaching Practice in the local schools.

BUC posrrrvely engaged rhe neighbounng St Michael Secondary School by enabling the school to get connected

ro the Universrry College water supply system.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their repon rogether wirh the audited financial statemenr for rhe year ended June 30,

2023, which show the state of rhe Entiry's affats

, Prircipef e.dvitics

The princrpai activity of rhe Universiry College is to provide university education through teaching, craining,

research and outreach.

ii) R6ult3

The resu.lts of the Unrversity Collcge for the year ended June 30, 2023, are set out on pages 24-28

iii) Dic<tm

The members of the Universiry College Councrl who served dunng the year are shown on pages vii-x. During

rhe year 2022/2023 no director retired/ resigned and 6 directors were appornted with effect from 8'6 J'iy,2022

for a period ofthree years.

r) $qptsrcofuim

In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management (National Government)

Regulations, regulatory enrlries shall remir inro Consolidared Fund, ninety per c€ntum of its surplus funds

reponed in the audrted financial statements after the end of each financial year.

Bomet Universrry College did nor make any surplus during the year cnded |une 30, 2023 and hence no remrEtance

to the Consolidated Fund

, Asditocr

The Auditor-General is responsible for the starutory audit of the Univetsiry College in accordance with Article

229 of rhe Consrirurion of Kenya and the Public Audit Act to carry out the audrt of rhe Enrity for rhe

year/peri,od ended June 30,2023, in accordance to section 23 of the Publ'c A,rdit Act, 2015 wh'ch empowers

rhe Audiror General ro appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf

Dy Order of the Council

#* e Kisaka a

klocipd and Scclctrry to thc C.omcil

xxxlt



Bomet University College
(A Constituenl College of Moi Universill)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

Secrion 8I ofthe Public Finance Management Act, 20I2 and sectron 14 ofthe State Corporations Act Cap 446

require the Direcrors ao prepare financial statements in respect of the University College, whrch glve a true and

faii view ofthe srate of affairs oIthe University College at the end ofthe financial year/period and rhe oPeratrng

results ofthe Universrry College that yearfpertod. The Drrectors are also required to ensure that the University

College keeps proper accounting records which drsclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the

University College. The Directors are also respons,ble for safeguardrng the assets of the Universrty College.

The Directors are responsible for the prepararion and presentatron ofthe [Jnrversrty Co[ege's 6nancial statements,

whrch grve a true and fair vrew ofthe state ofaffarrs ofthe University Col.lege for and as at rhe end ofthe financial

year (perrod) ended on June 30,2023. This responsibrliry includes: (i) Maintaining adequate financral

managemenr arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporring period; (ii)
Maintaining proper accouncing records, which drsclose wrth reasonable accuracy at any time the financral

position of the Unrversity College; (iri) Desigmng, implementing and marntatning internal controls relevant to

rhe preparation and fair presenration of the financral statemencs, and ensuring that they are free from -^t"dal
missraremenrs, wherher due to error or fraud; (iv) Safeguard,ng the assets ofthe Unrversiry College; (v) Selectrng

and applying appropriare accounrrng policies; and (vi) Makrng accounting estimaces that are reasonable rn rhe

circumstances,

The Drrectors accept resporuibility for the Universiry Col.lege's financial statements, which have been prepared

using appropnate accounting policres supported by reasonable and prudent ;udgements and estimates, rn

conformity with Inremacronal Public Sector Accounrrng Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner requited by the

PFM Acr, 2OI2 and the State Corporations Act Cap 446.The Directors are ofthe opinion that the Unrversiry

College's financial srarements give a true and fair view ofthe state of Universrty College's transactioru dunng the

financial year ended June 30,2023, and ofthe University College's financial position as at that date. The Council

further confirms the completeness of the accounting records marntained for the Uniuersity Co[Iege whrch have

been relied upon rn the prepararion ofrhe Unrversiry College's financral statements as well as the adequacy ofthe
systems of inrernal 6nancral control.

Nothrng has come to rhe acrenrion ofthe Council to rndtcate rhat the University College will not remarn a gorng

concem for at least the next twclve months from the dare of this statement.

Appovd of thc Goaacirl strtcmrnts

The University College's Gnancial statements were approved by the Council on Septembet 27, 2023 and signed

on its behalfbv:

4r' -
f6Prof. Simon Enc Mirema rol Anne 15 angu lu

t[c CormcilCheirpcno of Cormcll Ptiucipel rnd Sccrcary to

xxxlll
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR€ENERAL ON BOMET UNIVERSIW COLLEGE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting franework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direcl effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Govemment
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Govemance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemenled by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied wlth all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance ManagementAct,2012 and the PublicAuditAct,20l5. Thethree parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverce Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bomet University College set
out on pages 'l to 48, which comprise the statement of financial position re at
30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual

Repo oflhe Auditot$eneral on Bomet University College for the year ended j0 June, 2023



amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of the Bomet University College as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with the
Universities Acl, 2012 and the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

I lnaccuracies in the Financial Statements

t

1.1. Variance Between the Financial Statements and
Balances

Audited Comparative

The financial statements reflects comparative balances which varies with the prior year
202112022 audited statements as shown below:

Management has not satisfactorily explained the basis of amending the comparative
balances or disclosed the reason for the amendments' in the financial statements.

1.2 Unbalanced Statement of Financial Position

The statement of financial position reflects a total assets balances of Kshs.2,151 ,435,203
against total liabilities balance of Kshs.2,151,477,533 resulting to an unexplained and
unsupported variance of Kshs.42,330.

Reporr ofthe Auditor-General on Bomet Uni,ersitl' College lor thc 1-ear endcd 30 June, 2023
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Component Description

Financial
Statements

tor 202212O23
(Kshs.)

Audit Certificate
Financial

Statements
202112022

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Statement
Performance

of Financial

Accumulated
Period

Surplus for the 131,877,391 84,575,811 47,301,586

Statement of Cash Flows
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents
at the beginning of the year

200,009,985 204,725,935 4,715,950

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the
end of the year

260,613,070 265,329,020 4,715,950



1.3 Statement of Changes in Net Assets

The statement of changes in net assets reflects a comparative amount of
Kshs.1 ,944, 1 92,165 in respect of total net assets which is at variance with the amount of
Kshs.1 ,933,059,861 reflected in the statement of financial position resulting to an
unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.11,132,304. Further, the statement
reflects an amount of Kshs.25,000,000 in respect of capital development grants received
during the year. However, review of the supporting documents including the Ministry of
Education - State Department for Higher Education and Research list of SAGAs and
Public University funding statement revealed transferred amount of Kshs.59,430,648 in
respect of development to the University resulting to an unexplained and unreconciled
variance of Kshs.34,430,648.

ln addition, the statement reflects an amount of Kshs.227,082,506 in respect of
accumulated revenue reserye which includes an amount of Kshs.46,181,119 in respect
of surplus for the year which is at variance with the Kshs.162,754,384 reflected in the
statement of financial performance resulting to an unexplained and unreconciled variance
of Kshs.1 16,573,265. Further, the accumulated revenue reserve includes amounts of
Kshs.26,330,598 and Kshs.69,994,587 in respect of capital development grants received
and transfer of depreciation/amortisation from capital fund to retained earnings which
were not supported. Similarly, the statement reflects capital development grants totalling
Kshs.612,855,768 which includes an amount of Kshs.69,994,587 indicated to relate to
transfer of depreciation/amortisation from capital fund to retained earnings which was not
supported.

1.4 Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.221,803,371 which includes cash flows from investing activities amounting to
Kshs.49,343,707 in respect of purchase of property, plant and equipment. However, the
amount is at variance with additions amount of Kshs.56,193,409 as disclosed in Note 18
to the financial statements resulting to an unexplained and unreconciled variance of
Kshs.7,505,995. Further, the statement includes working capital changes relating to
decrease in receivables from non-exchange, receivable from exchange and payables of
Kshs.3,632,921, Kshs.1,708,125 and Kshs.58,678,043 which is at variance with the
re-computed increase and decrease in amounts of Kshs.1,708,125, Kshs.3,632,921 and
Kshs.53,81 5,921 respectively.

ln addition, the statement reflects an amount of Kshs.25,000,000 in respect of capital
development grants from GOK which is at variance with an amount of Kshs.59,430,648
as supported with Ministry of Education - State Department for Higher Education and
Research list of SAGAs and Public University funding statements resulting to an
unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.34,430,648.

1.5 Variances Between Balances in the Financial Statements and Trial Balance

Review of the financial statements revealed various items which differed with the
balances reflected in the trial balance as shown below:
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Component Particulars

Financial
Statements

Balances
(Kshs.)

Trial Balance
Balances

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Expenditure ltem

Use of Goods and Services 36,041,119 36,227,223 186,104
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 221,803,371 222,514,941 711,570
Receivables
Transactions

from Exchange 13,709,592 13,655,602 53,990

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,901,775,066 1,965,400,521 63,625,455
lntangible Assets 12,408,699 16,544,931 4,136,232
Total Assets 2,151,435,203 2,2',19,854,470 68,419,267

Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables from
Exchange Transactions

45,709,421 46,722,541 1,013J20

Provisions 23,132,975 34,878,019 't1,745,044
Non-Current Liabilities 67,143,299 67,442,299 299,000
Total Liabilities 136,104,248 149,16't,413 13,057,165

Capital and Reserves
Capital Development Funds 612,855,768 617,151,340 4,295,572
Accumulated Revenue Reserve 227,082,506 0 227,082,506

The resultant variances were not explained or reconciled.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements as
presented could not be confirmed.

2. UnsupportedTransactions

2.1. Revenue from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.92,413,075 in respect
of revenue from exchange transactions and as disclosed in Note 2 to the financial
statements. However, review of supporting documents revealed that the University did
not reconcile its enrolment data for the year with the billed/income ledgers for the year.
As a result, it was not possible to match the revenue with the number of students at any
given time.

2.2. Part Time Teaching Claims

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs expenditure amounting
to Kshs.305,725,310 which includes an amount of Kshs.1,927,880 in respect of part time
teaching claims and as disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. However, review
of the supporting schedule revealed a total amount of Kshs.1 ,761 ,800 resulting to an
unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.166,080. Further, included in the
expenditure is an amount of Kshs.1,593,260 in respect of previous years claims that had
not been disclosed as staff payables in the previous year financial statements. However,
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the supporting documents including hours taught and attendance registers were not
provided for audit verification.

2.3. Use of Goods and Services

2.3.'t. Academic Expenses

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amount of
Kshs.36,041,119 which includes an amount of Kshs.19,027,535 in respect of academic
expenses and as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. However, review of
supporting documents including payment vouchers revealed that expenditure amounting
to Kshs.S,125,586 was incurred through imprest issued to University employees and were
directly expensed without surrender vouchers and proof of work done and therefore the
payments remain unaccounted for. Further, the academic expenses include an amount
of Kshs.2,500,080 in respect of provisions for teaching practise. However, the provisions
were not supported with specific schedules of debts provided for, evidence of travel,
assessment and back to office reports and list of the assessed students.

2.3.2. Administrative Expenses

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amount of
Kshs.36,041,119 which includes an amount of Kshs.17,013,584 in respect of
administrative expenses and as disciosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. Horuever,
review of the supporting documents revealed expenditure totalling Kshs.16,876,508
resulting to an unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.137,076. Further, payment
vouchers provided for audit revealed that expenditure amounting to Kshs.3,831 ,576 was
incurred through imprest issued to University employees and were directly expensed
without surrender vouchers and proof of work done and therefore the payments remain
unaccounted for.

2.4. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects balance of Kshs.1 3,709,592 in respect of
receivables from exchange transactions and as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements. The balance includes student debtors balance of Kshs.15,232,880 with
provision of doubtful debts balance of Kshs.1 ,523,288. However, the supporting schedule
detailing students fee that had been outstanding for more than six months were not
provided for audit review to justify the provision is in line with Section 11.6 of the Bomet
University Financial Management Policy, June 2020 which states that any debts
outstanding for more than six months shall be classified as doubtful requiring legal debts
recovery measures to be reinforced.

2.5. Refundable Deposits and Retention Monies

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 1 7 to the financial statements
reflects non-current liabilities balance of Kshs.67,143,299 in respect of retention funds.
This comprised of contractors' retention money and students' caution money. However,
the retention funds were not supported with any documents including retention control
ledgers, interim payment certificates and certificate of bank balance for the retention
account.

Repor, o/the Auditor-General on Bomel University Collegefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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2.6. Srudents Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.45,709,421 which includes balances of Kshs.9,758,648,
Kshs.499,309 and Kshs.649,232 in respect of fees prepayments, HELB Control account
and CDF Control Account respectively as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.
However, the supporting documents including the list of student and fees statement for
students that resulted in prepaid fees were not provided for audit review. Further,
Management did not provide reasons for failure to receipt fees from HELB and CDF.

2.7. General Provisions

The statement of financial position reflects a provisions balance of Kshs.23,132,975
which includes a balance of Kshs. 1 ,176,900 in respect of general provision and as
disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. However, the balance was not supported
with respective schedules.

ln the circumstances, the validity, accuracy and completeness of the financial statements
as presented could not be confirmed.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.221,803,371 in respect of
cash and cash equivalents and as disclosed in Note '10 to the financial statements. The
cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.221,803,371 includes a balance of
Kshs.13,009,513 held in a local bank account. However, review of the bank reconciliation
statement revealed that the balance contains long outstanding payments in bank
statements not yet recorded in cashbooks (unrepresented cheques) amounting to
Kshs.711,570 relating to the period between September, 2020 lo September, 2021.
Management has not explained why the same have not yet been recorded in cashbook.

Further, the balance includes an amount of Kshs.1,753,809 held in an Mpesa pay bill
account which was not supported since the Mpesa paybill account statement and its
reconciliation statement was not maintained. Failure to prepare monthly bank
reconciliation statements is contrary to Regulation 90(1) of the Public Finance
Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Accounting
Officer of a National Government entity to ensure bank account reconciliations are
completed for each bank account held by the Accounting Officer every month and
submitted not later than the 1Oth of the subsequent month to The National Treasury with
a copy to the Auditor-General.

ln the circumstance, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.22 t,803,371 could not be confirmed and Management was in breach of
the law.

4. Long Outstanding lmprests

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balances of Kshs.373,725 and Kshs.2,081,850 in respect of unaccounted imprest for the
year under review and comparative balance respectively and as disclosed in Note 12 to
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the financial statements. However, the statement reflects a decrease of Kshs.1,708,125
of the unsurrenderdd imprest from previous year 202112022 audited financial statements
which was not supported with surrender vouchers. Further, the unsurrendered imprest of
Kshs.373,725 remained outstanding at the end of the year contrary to Regulation 93(5)
of the Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which
requires holders of temporary imprest to account or surrender the imprest within seven
(7) working days after returning to duty station. Management did not provide any
explanation for non-recovery of the outstanding imprest from salaries of the defuulting
officers.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of outstanding
imprests balance of Kshs.373,725 could not be confirmed and Management was in
breach of the law.

5. Long Outstanding Accounts Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.45,709 ,421 and as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements. However, review of the supporting schedule revealed that the balance
includes long outstanding trade creditors balance of Kshs.9,858,547 dating back to 2021
which were not settled contrary to Regulation 42(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations, 2015, which states that debt service payments shall
be a first charge on the Consolidated Fund and the Accounting Officer shall ensure this
is done to the extent possible that the Government does not default on debt obligations.
Further, failure to settle the outstanding payables amounts to breach of the law and may
lead to the University incurring unquantified penalties and interest costs.

Further, the trade and other payables from exchange transactions balance includes
payroll creditors amounting to Kshs.2,137,940 which has been outstanding since 2018.
This is contrary to Employment Act, 2007 (17) which requires that an employer pays the
entire amount of the wages earned by or payable to an employee in respect of work done
by the employee.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and failure to honor the
obligations may result into legal litigations against the University incurring unquantified
penalties and interest costs.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). lam independent of the Bomet University College
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipt
budget and actual on comparable basis amounts of Kshs.396,170,059 and
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Kshs.406,234,635 respectivelv resulting in over-funding by Kshs.10,064,576 or 3% of the
budget. Similarly, the statement reflects final budget expenditure and actual on
comparable basis of amounts of Kshs.455,600,706 and Kshs.464,267,023 respectively
resulting into over-absorption of Kshs.8,666,316 or 2% of the budget. The over-absorption
resulted to unauthorized expenditure and Management was in breach of the law.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

Under report of the financial statements, nine (9) issue for the previous year,202O12021
audited financial statements remained unresolved while three (3) out of the six (6) issues
raised in the previous year 202112022 audited financial statements under laMulness and
effectiveness with three of the issues remaining unresolved. Management did not provide
reasons for the delay in resolving the prior year audit issues contrary to the approved
template by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and firmed by The National
Treasury's Circulars. Further, Management did not provide reports from the overslght
committee's detailing the deliberations and recommendations of the committees on the
matters resolved.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Gonclusion

'|. Non-Compliance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
Requirement on Presentation of the Financial Statements

Review of the financial statements revealed that the preamble under financial
performance reflects total expenses of Kshs,396,495,612 which is at variance with
re-calculated amount of Kshs.396,302,831. Further, classification of credit risk bearing
assets indicates cash and cash equivalents as Kshs.228,784,389 which is at variance
with the reported amount of Kshs.221,803,371. ln addition, Note 22 to the financial
statements in respect of the ultimate and holding entity represent Agency under the
Ministry of xxxx on page 38 to the financial statement. The financial statement also
includes several blank pages which should be deleted.
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ln the circumstances, the lnstitution did not comply with the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board (PSASB) guidelines.

2. Unbalanced Budget

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year ended
30June,2023 reflects a final revenue budget of Kshs.396,170,059 and an expenditure
final budget of Kshs.455,600,706 resulting in a variance of Kshs.59,430,647. The budget
imbalance is contrary to the provisions of Section 33(c) of the Public Finance
Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that 'budget
revenue and expenditure appropriation shall be balanced.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Employee Costs

3.1 Non-Compliancewith Fiscal Responsibility Principles

The expenditure on employee cost of Kshs.305,725,310 constitute 7 5o/o of total revenue
of Kshs.406,234,635 during the year under review. This is 40% above the limit contrary
to Regulation 26(1Xa) of the Public Finance Management (National Govemment)
Regulations, 2015 which requires that National Government's expenditure on the
compensation of employees (including benefits and allowances) shall not exceed
thirty-five percent (35%) of the National Government's equitable share of the revenue
raised nationally plus other revenues generated by the National Government pursuant to
Article 209(4) of the Constitution.

3.2 lrregular Payment of Acting Allowances

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.305,725,310
which includes acting allowance of Kshs.2,725,507 and as disclosed in Note 4 to the
financial statements. The allowance was paid to twenty{hree (23) employees appointed
to higher positions in the academic and administrative departments. However, the officers
continued acting in the positions for eighteen (18) months since January, 2022 more lhan
the stipulated six (6) months contrary to Policy C.14(1) of the Human Resource Policies
and Procedures Manual, 2016 which states that acting allowance will not be payable to
an officer for more than six (6) months.

3.3 lrregular Engagement of Casual Employees

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.305,725,310
which includes casual wages of Kshs.1,001,470 and as disclosed in Note 4 to the financial
statements. However, the engaged casual employees were not recorded in the master
roll. Further, the University had engaged the casual employees for over twelve months.
This was contrary to Section 37 of the Employment Act, 2007 and Policy 2.3.4 of the
University's Human Resource Policy Manual which states that casual employment may
be offered to employees to perform defined tasks on a day to day basis and their
remuneration shall be on a piece rate basis in accordance with the minimum wage
guidelines set by the Government. Such appointments may be for a specified period of
time provided that it does not exceed three months. ln addition, the daily casual register,
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approval for the recruitment of the casual employees by the Council, requisitions for staff
by the respective department, recruitment reports, and engagement letters issued to the
workers were not presented for audit.

3.4 Under-Establishment

Review of the human resource records revealed that the University establishment was
one hundred and forty-eight (148) employees as at 30 June, 2023 against an approved
establishment of two hundred and ninety-three (293) indicating an under-establishment
of one hundred and forty-five (145) employees being 49% of the approved establishment.
Further, review of the employee records revealed that, the University had sixty-eight (68)
employees being 46% of the establishment under the academic function against eighty
(80) employees or 54% underthe administrative function. This is conkary to Commission
for University Education Guidelines on staff establishment which requires at least seventy
percent (70%) of the University staff to be under the academic function.

ln the circumstances, the University Management was in breach of law.

4. lrregular Payment of Allowances to Non-Council Members

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.9,770,872 in respect
of remuneration of directors and as disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
However, the expenditure includes amounts totalling Kshs.2,693,480 paid to non-council
members in form of imprests and expense claims contrary to Section 36(1) of the
Universities 4d,2012.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. Use ofGoods and Services

5.1 NonCompliance with Commission for University Education Guidelines on
Research Programmes

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amount of
Kshs.36,041,119 and as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements which includes
an amount of Kshs.2,225,210 in respect of University's research programme which was
one percent (1%) of the total University operational expenses of Kshs.394,604,533. This
was contrary to Standard NST/STD/O10 of the University Standards for Accreditation and
Operations which states that a University shall endeavor to have adequate funds for
research by allocating a minimum of 2olo of its operational budget to research. This implies
that the University fell short of the set budgetary limit by one percent (1%).

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5.2 lrregular Procurement of lnternet Services

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amount of
Kshs.36,014,119 which includes an amount of Kshs.17,013,584 in respect of
adminishative expenses and as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. Review
of the supporting schedule revealed that an amount of Kshs.3,334,794 was in respect of
internet expenses for the supply and installation of internet bandwidth and connectivity.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Bomet University Collegefor theyear ended 30 June,2023
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However, review of procurement and contract records provided for audit revealed that
'direct procurement method was used without supporting evidence sontrary to Regulation
90 of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and value for money on expenditure of
Kshs.3,334,794 in respect of internet services could not be confirmed and Management
was in breach of the contract.

5.3 Non-Payment of Audit Fees

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services totalling
Kshs.36,041,1'19 which includes an amount of Kshs.17,0'13,584 in respect of
administrative expenses and as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements which
further includes an amount of Kshs.540,000 in respect of audit fee. However, review of
the supporting schedule and invoices revealed that the University had not remitted any
audit fees to the Office of the Auditor-General since its establishment and had an
outstanding audit fee balance of Kshs.1,794,600 as at 30 June, 2023. This is contrary to
the provisions of Section 41 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 that requires the audited entity
to pay audit fees at the rates prescribed by the Auditor-General. Further, the unpaid audit
fees were not included in the list of accounts payables and the financial statements for
the year under review.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

6. lneligible Expenditure on Legal Cost

Review of the legal cases records revealed that the University incurred nugatory
expenses on interest and suit cost amounting to Kshs.1,941,929 due to non-settlement
of pending bills. The supplier instituted a legal suit against the University vide case
number E045 of 2022 after the Management had failed to pay an amount of
Kshs.2,920,'193 in respect of supply and delivery of goods during the financial year
201612017. However, Management did not provide explanation as to why there was
delayed payment for the supplied goods resulting to ineligible costs of Kshs.1,941,929 in
form of legal charges and interest. Further, the total amount of Kshs.4,862,122 in respect
of the contract and interest had not been paid and was not disclosed as pending accounts
payable in the financial statements during the year under review.

ln the circumstances, the propriety and value for money on the nugatory expenditure
amounting to Kshs.1,941,929 could not be confirmed.

7. lncomplete lntangible Assets

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.12,408,699 in respect of
intangible assets and as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements. However, the
contract documents provided for audit review indicated that Management contracted a
local firm to supply, install, implement and commission an Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) software at a contract sum of Kshs.16,544,931 with a commencement date of
26 June, 2020 and implementation timeline of seventeen (17) weeks which had been paid
but the contractor had not handed over the system and is no longer on site. Further, the
lnspection and Acceptance Committee report was not provided for audit review. ln

Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on Bomet University Collegefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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addition, audit verification carried out in February,2024 revealed that the system had four
(4) of the system's developers who were not employees of the University who retained
unhindered access rights and still executed the functional roles of the different
departments on behalf of the University staff.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and fair valuation of the intangible
assets of Kshs.12,408,699 could not be confirmed.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

8.'t Unbudgeted Expenditure on Renovations and Associated Works at Green
Tuition Block

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.1 ,901 ,775,066 which includes additions of Kshs.48,526,808 in respect of capital in
progress and as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statement. Review of the financial
records provided, revealed that a local company was contracted to carry out renovation,
remedial and associated works and installation of new floor tiles at Green Tuition Block
at a cost of Kshs.9,450,813. However, review ofthe procurement and budget documents
revealed that the renovation works had not been budgeted for and were not included in
the procurement plan for the year under review. This was contrary to Section 53(8) of the
Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which requires the Accounting Officer
not to commence any procurement proceeding until satisfied that sufficient funds to meet
the obligations of the resulting contract are reflected in its approved budget estimates.

Further, review of procurement records provided for audit revealed that the contract was
awarded to a new contractor after the initial contractor had done substandard works and
abandoned the site after payment of Kshs.772,945,748 as certified by the Project
Manager. Evidence of termanation of the initial contract was not provided for audit which
was in breach of Regulation 141(4) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Regulations, 2020 which states that an Accounting Officer of a procuring entity shall be
required to terminate a contract within a reasonable time when it becomes apparent that
a contract is frustrated based on the evidence from the contract implementation team. ln
addition, Management did not seek any legal advice or clearance from the
Attorney-General or the University's Legal Officer in writing contrary to Regulation '141(5)

of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and the value for money
from the expenditure of Kshs.9,450,813 could not be confirmed.

8.2 Abandoned Proposed Construction of Library Block, Construction of
2 No. Hostel Blocks, Construction of Multipurpose Hall and Tuition Block.

As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.1,901 ,775,066 which includes a
balance of Kshs.876,021,877 in respect of capital in progress, which further includes the
proposed construction of library block, construction of 2 No. hostel blocks, construction
of multipurpose hall and tuition block. The projects commenced in November, 2016 with
the expected initial completion date set for 08 November, 2018 however the project
stalled since March, 2021 due to abandonment of works by the Contractor and

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Bomel Uniyersity Collegefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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non-disbursement of funds by the Ministry of Education. Physical verification of the project
in February, 2024 rdvealed that that the contractor was not on site and works remained
incomplete at 52%. Further, review of the project file revealed that the Project
lmplementation Committee forthe project is currently not in place and a valid performance
security bond and interim payment certificates were not provided for audit, while the
project remained abandoned.

ln the circumstances, the University may not obtain value for money and the expected
benefits from the projects may not be realized.

8.3 Abandoned Construction and Extension of Ablution Blocks and Kitchenette,
Collaboration, lnternational and Training Centre Unit for Research Centre and
Start-Up Village Centre Phase ll

As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.1,901,775,066 which includes a
balance of Kshs.876,021,877 in respect of capital in progress which further includes the
proposed construction and extension of ablution blocks and kitchenette, collaboration,
international and training centre unit for research centre and start-up village centre phase
ll. The projects commenced on 12 February,2021 with the expected initial completion
date set for 01 March, 2021 however, the project stalled due to abandonment of works
by the Contractor and non-disbursement of funds by the Ministry of Education. Physical
verification of the project carried out in February, 2024 revealed that the contractor was
not on site and works remained incomplete al 28o/o. Further, review of the project file
revealed that the Project lmplementation Committee for the project is currently not in
place and a valid performance security bond was not provided for audit. ln addition, the
interim payment certificates were not provided for audit and the project remained
abandoned.

ln the circumstances, the University may not obtain value for money and the expected
benefits from the projects may not be realized.

8.4 Unsupported Proposed Construction of Administration Block

As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflecls propefi, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.1,901,775,066 which includes a
balance of Kshs.876,021,877 in respect of capital in progress which further includes the
proposed construction of administration block. The project commenced in 30 March, 2022
with the expected completion date set for 31 March, 2025. However, supporting
documents including approved budget, approval by the Ministry of Education and
appointment of the Project Management Committee and minutes were not provided for
audit review. Further, procurement documents, interim payment certificate and
performance security bond were not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness and source of fund for the project
could not be confirmed.

9. lnventories and Stores Management

As disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects a balance of Kshs.1,364,750 in respect of inventories and stores. However, the
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University does not have an aporoved inventory policy. Further, quarterly stock take was
not conducted contrary to Sectibn 162(2) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Act, 2015 which requires the Head of Procurement to, at least quarterly in each calendar
year, conduct quarterly and annual inventory and stock taking in order to ensure
compliance with all respective governing laws and submit the report to the Accounting
Officer.

ln the circumstances, existence of effective internal control on stocks could not be
confirmed and Management is in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance sections of my
report, based on the audit procedures performed, I conflrm that internal controls, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of ICT Systems Administration and Management

During the year under review, a scrutiny of the University's lnformation Technology
infrastructure revealed that the server room did not have a burglar proof access door and
there was no access control or register in place to track those who access the room.
Further, there was no functional air conditioner or fire suppression systems put in place
to provide an environment where computer equipment can safely operate. ln addition, a
review of the University's ICT governance documents revealed that the University did not
have an ICT continuity and disaster recovery plan despite its heavy dependence on
information technology to run its business. ln the event of a disaster, the business
operations of the University may be interrupted for a significantly long period of time and
the data may not be restored.

ln the circumstances, the integrity of the lT infrastructure and the lT assets of the
University is compromised and data may not be recovered in the event of a disaster.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.
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Responsibilities of Management and the University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the University's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution.
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Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in orderto give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

Reporl oflhe Auditor-General on Eomet University Collegefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencrcs in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

26 April,2024

s-

BS=EE
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Bomet University College
(A Constituent College of Moi University)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023'

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

PARNCULARS Nct 2t ?lt , z'ztnan

Rcvrtuc frcm Ne. Erclrraa Tn.tlcaiDrt Xrb Kfht

Transfers from other govemments in cash I 3l1,170,059 3t2,249,416

$6Tdl sl3,rrt tt 312Ja9.416

Revenue from Exchaoge Transactions

Rendering of good & services 2 92,4t3,015 68,s91,700

Other Incomes 3 t32,900 27 t,420

Externally Generated Funds 3 5l 8,601 259,5',70

Sub-Total 93,064,576 69,122,690

Tot.l navta.r alzaral}t !trJ7r.o6

Expenses

Employee costs 4 305,725,310 298,7 t2,919

Remuneration of Directors 5 9,7',70,872 1 ,424,930

Depreciation 6 15,85 3,701 12,646,654

Repairs and maintenance
,1 4,t5 t,823 1,622,148

Contracted Services 8 24,952,786 22,300,102

Use of Goods and Services

Totrl ErFlrcr

9 36,04t,119

tra,art 612

21,851,871

,sr55E,6ra

Other Gains/(losses)

Provision for bad/doubtful debts 403,658 515,556

Total Other Gains/(losses) 403,658 515,556

Srrylu (Ilclldr) br ll. ?.;l d rJlsJ6 t3J29,Gl?

Anrornt Ecotn B plrv. Cr to SurPlc ,t5.1f,27 r6...e,4s

Accumul.ted Surplus t62,1s43E4 r31,877J91

The notes sec out on pages 9 ro 45 form ao rntegral part ofchese Financial Statements. The Frnancral Statements

set out on pages I to 8 were srgned on behalfofthe Councrl by:

Prof. Simon Eric Mitemo
Choirperson of Council

t,
CPA Lorine Obonyo
ICPAK NO. 6577
Chief Accounlonl

Io(
Jpror Anne Kisoko Nongulu

Principol ond Secelory lo lhe Council



Bomet University College
(A Conslituent College of Moi University)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30' 2023.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JT]NE 2023

Current Asets:

265.329,020l0 221,803,37tCash and cash equivalents

10,076,671ll t3,709,592Receivables from exchange transactions

t2 373,725 2,081,850Receivables from non-exchange transactions

t3 t.364.750 2,146,248Inventories

NoD-Current A$ets

I.901.775,066 t,857,299,125hoperty, Plant and Equipment l8

t6,544,931l9 12,408,699Intangible Asses

1,873,844,0s6r,9r4183,76sTotel Non-Curretrt Assets

LIABILMIES

Current Liebilities:

45,709,421 99,525,342l4
Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

4,980,675l5 I 18,554Other payables- Contingent Liabilities

23,132,975 4t,547,398l6Provisions

Non-Current Lirbilities

67,143,299 74,3U,569t7Non-Cunent Liabilities

57,143J99 74,354,X9Total Non- Current Liabilities

136r0424E 220,417,9E3TOTAL LIABILITIES

FINAI{CED BY:
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Bomet University College
(A Constituent College of Moi University)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

Capital Development Funds 6l 855 768

The notes set out on pages 9 to 37 form an integral pan of these Financial Statements. The Financial

Statements set out on pages I to 8 were signed on behalfofthe Council by

@ h(
I Prof.Prof. Simon Eric Mitemo

Choirpo:ron of Council
CPA Lorlne Obonyo
tcPAK NO. 652l
Chid Accounlonl

Kisoko No
Principcl ond Socrlory io lho Council

1,848,484,0501,175,435,010Revaluation Reserve

227,082,506 84,575,81IAccumulated Revenue Reserve
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Bomet University College
(A Constituent College of Moi University)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30' 2023.

Description

Capital
Development
Grants

Revaluation
Reserve

Accumulated
Revenue
Reserve Totals

As at July l, 2021 607,8$,35s rr0l,76s,60E 61,247,165 1,870,863,12E

Revaluation

Surplus/ deficit for the year 23,329,037
23,329,037

Capital/development grants received
during the year 50,000,000

50,000,000

Transfer of depreciatior/amortizatlon
from capital fund to retained eamings

As at June 30, 2022 557,850,355 1201,76s,608 84,576,202 1,944,,192,165

As at July 1, 2022 557,850,355 1,201,765,608 u,576,202 1,94a,192,165

Revaluation

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 46,18r,119
46,181,119

Capital/development grants received
during the year 25,000,000 26,330,598 26,330,598

25,m0,000

Transfer of depreciatior/amortisatlon
from capital fund to retained eamings 69,994,s87 69,994,587

As at June 30, 2023 612,8s5,758 I,175,435,010 227,082,506 2,013.373,2U

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Prior Year Adjustments in Changes in Net Assets
There were casting errors over the years which has been made good in the current financial year.

lncluded in the Surplus of Kshs 46,181,1l9 are amounts provided for as provisions in the Financial

Statement ended 30 June,2020 but were capitalised to Work in Progress in the Financial Years

202112022 and 202212023. These amounts were Kshs. 5,578,833 for the Financial Y ear 202212023

and Kshs. 15,304,127 for the Financial Year 2021/2022. There was an overstatement of the

Revaluation Reserve by Kshs. 26,330,598. An understatement of the Surplus for the Flnancial

2020/2021 Financial Year of a similar amount ought to have been credited back to Surplus. This

amount was recognised as provisions in the Financial Year 201912020 and the same had been

capitalised to Work In Progress in the Financial Year 2020/2021. An unutilised amount earlier

recognised as provision ofKshs.l5, 962,794 and expensed has also been credited back to surplus

4



Bomet University College
(A Constituent College of Moi Universily)
Annual Report and Financial Ststements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Income

3 13,170,059 312,249,416IRevenue from Non Exchange Transactions

69,122,6902 92,413,075Revenue from Exchange Transactions

65l,s0l3IOther Income

Erpenditure
305,725,310 298,712,9t94Employee costs

1,424,9305 9,770,872Remuneration of Directors

Depreciation and amortization expense

I 6 I 4822Repairs and maintenance 7 4,t51,823

I 24,952,7E6 22,300,t02Contracted Services

9 36,041,1l9 21,851,871Use of Goods and Services

380,641,911 345,911,970

Working Capitel Changes:

Total Expenses

Purchase of Motor vehicles

3,632,92t 889,020
Decrease/(increase) in receivables- Non

Exchange Transactions

l,708,125 4,640,002Decrease/(increase) in receivables-Exchange
Transactions

58,678,043 t32,621(Decrease)/lncrease in Payables

781,498 86,089Decrease./(lncrease) in Inventories

26,962,774 41,035,690Net Casb flows from Operating Activities

Cesh llows from Investing Activitics
3 6040 41249,343,707Purchase of property, plant, equipment

Cash flows from Financing Activities

25,000,000 50,000,000Capital Development Crants from GOK
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(A Conslituent College of Mot Univenity)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the yea r ended June 30, 2023.

60,603,085(5rJ06,481)Net Increase(Decreas€) in Cash and Cesh

uivalents

200,009,985Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning
of tle Year
Cesh and Cash Equivalents at end of the
Dcrbd

6



Bomet University College
(A Constituent College of Moi anivercity)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

REVENUE:

Original
Budget
2022t2023

Adjustments Final
Budget

Actual
3U06n023

Variance
Variance

Exchequer Funds- Recurrent Budget 3 I 3, t70,059 0 3 l3,l 70,059 313, 170,0s9 0 0

Tuition Income and Related Charges 83,000,000 0 83,000,000 92,413,075 -9,413,075 -l t

Extemally Generated Funds 0 0 0 5 18601 -5 r 8,601 0

Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0 132900 -t32,900 0

TOTAL INCOME 396,170,0s9 0 396,170,059 406,234,,635 -10,064,576 -ll

EXPENDITURE
Personnel Costs 29s,530, r 66 5,504,144 301,034,310 305,725,310 -4,69 t ,000 2

Purchase Non-Current Assets 73,100,648 -3,173,000 69,927,648 49,343,706 20,583,942 29

Council Expense 10,000,000 3 85,959 10,385,959 9,770,872 6l 5,087 6

Academic expenses 27,926,370 -6,004,263 21,922,107 t9,027,535 2,894,572 l3
Administrative Costs 8,9 t 3,001 3,394,676 t7,607,677 17,013,584 594,093 J

Maintenance Expenses 7,03s,876 2,6t'7,963 4,4t7,913 4,151,823 266,090 6

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 5,394,645 0 5,394,645 I 5,853,701 - 10,459,056 -194

Utilities 4,900,000 400,000 0 0 0 0

Contracted services s,800,000 654,804 24,910,447 24,952,786 -42,339 0

Insurance Expenses 17,000,000 I,45s,643 0 18,427,704 -t8,427,704 0

SUB TOTAL.OPERATIONS &
MAINTENANCE r00,639,892 -5,504,144 154.566J96 158,54t,712 -3,975J16 1

GROSS EXPENDITURE 396,170,059 I 455,600,706 464.267,023 -E,666J16

SURPLUS(DEFICIT) 0 I -59,430,647 0
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Exphrrtiu of Mrterirl Varirnces

Tuition and Rclated Income - This was attributcd to the fact that mor€ studcnt werc admitted in thc

rcview

Deprcciation and amortization- Only a small proportion was budgdod for contibuting to the

r€ported.

Administrative Costs.

under
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Bomel University College
A Constiluent College of Moi University)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. Crcnccallnformetion

BUC is esrablished by and derives its authority and accountability from the Universities Act No.42,20I2

(Revised 2016) and rhe Lega.l Order esrabhshing Bomet University College. The entrry is wholly owned by

rhe Governmenr of Kenya and is domiciled rn Kenya. The entiry's principal actrvity is the provision of

universicy education through teaching, learning, training, innovatron digital transformation, research and

outreach.

L Statmt of Corryliencc end B.si! of Prparrtion

The financial sratements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at re-

valued amounts of cenain irems of property, planr and equipment, marketable securities and financial

instrumenrs at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and actuarrally

derermined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

international Public Secror Accounring Srandards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions.

It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applyrng the University College's

accounting policles. There are no areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, or where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements.

The financial sraremenrs have been prepared and presenred rn Kenya Shilhngs, which is rhe functiona]

and reporting currency of the Universiry College. The financial sratements have been prepared rn

accordance wirh the PFM Act, rhe Srate Corporations Act, Universities' Act and Intemational Public

Sector Accounting Srandards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adoptcd have been consistently applied

ro all rhe years presented.
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Bomel University College
A Conslituent College of Moi Universily)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Nccs to 6c Fin:ocid Statarcnts (Cafnua)

3. Adoptim of Ncr and Rcsisod Standar&

i. New and amended standards and intetpretations in issue cfrective n the year ended Solme 2O23.

IPS.{S 4I: Financial

Insrruments

IPS.{S 42 Social

Benefits

Ap,plicrblc l' lltl':cy 2fr232

Thc objecdve of IPSAS 4I is to establish pnnciples for the financial

reponing of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useftrl information to users of Enancial starements for their assessrnent

ofthe amounts, timing and uncertainry ofan Entiry's future cash flows.

IPS/S 4I provides users of financial statcments with more usefi.rl

information chan IPSAS 29, by:

' Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considcrs the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

' Applying a single forwardJooking cxpected credit loss modd

thar is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model chat broadens

the hcdging arrangements in scope ofthe guidancc. The

modcl develops a strong link berween an Endry's risk

management srategies and rhe accounting reatment for

instrumenrs held as pan of rhe risk managcment strategy,

l'llm,:ny?nZ3

The objective of chis Scandard is to improve che relevance, faithfi.rl

represenndveness and comparability ofthe information that a reporting

Enciry provides in its financial sratements about social benefits. Th"

information provided should help users ofthe financial statements and

general-purpose financial rcports assess:

(a) The nacure of slch social benefits provided by rhe Entiry.
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B o met U nive rs ity C o llege
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Annual Reports and Financial Stltements
For the ear ended June 30, 2023

Amendmenrs to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I, Financral

Instruments

Other improvements

to IPSAS

(b) The key feamres of the operation of thosc social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact ofsuch social benefits provided on che Endry's financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

Ap,plicrblc I *. Juuety ?.O23:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing cosm which were inadvenently

omirred when IPSAS 4I was issued.

b) Amendments co IPSAS 30, regarding illusrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadverrenrly omitted when

IPSAS 4I was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which wete

inadvenendy omitted when IPSAS 4I was issued.

d) Amendmenm to IPSAS 33, to update thc guidance on

classi$,ing financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual

basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4I

was issued.

Appltczbh I* Jnuary 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financizl In(ormation about the General

Govemment Sbctor. Amendments to refer to rhe laresr System of

National Accounrs (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Bencfirs. Now deletes the term composite

social securiry bene6a as it is no longer dcfined in IPSAS.

r IPSAS 29: Finencid incr"'cot* Rccoguition rnd lvlcasuno:nt

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is

now superseded by IPSAS 4I which is applicable from I" January

2023.
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Nccs to thc Financid Stttocns (Contlruca)

ii. Ncw and zmcadcd sandards and inrctprcations in issuc but not yct cfrcavc in the Var cnded 3O

Junc 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicablc I' January 2O2S

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure ofleases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and

lessors provide relevant information in a manner thar faithftrlly tepresents those

rransactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to

assess the effecr rhat leases have on che financial position, financial performance

and cash flows of an Entiry.

The new standard requires enrities to recognise, measure and present information

on righr ofuse assets and lexe liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontrnued

Operations

Appltcabh I" January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets rhar meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of

such assets to cease and:

Assem that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presenced

separarely in the statemenr of financial position and the results of discontinued

operations to be presented separarely in the statement of financial performance.

&rly a dop abn of s an dzrds

The University College did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in rhe financial year
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Bomet Universily College
A Constituent College of Moi aniversity)
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Notcs to thc Grencid strtocots (continucd)

a. Sroo:ry of funificant Accounting Policic

a) RcYcorc rccognitim

i) Rcvcanc ftom nm-crd:ngc aaosa<tims

Fccs, t rcs and 6nca

The University Co[ege recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and

the asset recognition cnreria are met. To the excenc that chere is a related condition actached rhat

would give ris€ to a liabiliry ro repay the amount, deferred income rs recognrzed rnstead of revenue.

Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable rhat rhe fi-Iture economic benefirs

or service potential associated with the asser will flow to the University College and the fair value

of the asset can be measured reliably.

T12Dsf.6 frg6 othcr govcgmant ,ndri6

Revenues from non-exchange rransactions with other govemment entities are measured ar fair value

and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, servrces and propeny) ifthe transfer

is free from conditions and it is probable thar the economic benefits or service porentral related to

the asser will flow to the University College and can be measured reliably. To the extenr that there

is a related conditron attached that would give rise to a liability to repay rhe amount, the amount

is recorded in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of financial

performance over the useful life of rhe assets that has been acquired usrng such funds.

0 Rcrcorc ftm cr&np ttros.aims

Rcodcring of scroiccs

The University College recognizes levenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of

completion when che outcome ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage ofcompletion

is measured by reference ro labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estrmated labour

hours. Where the contracr outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the

extent that the expenses rncurted are recoverable.
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Notcs to drc Fiaancll Statancnts (Continucd)

$mrr7 of Significrnt Accouoting Policics (Contimrcd)

Sdc ofgoo&

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownershrp

have been t.ansferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue

can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefics or service potenrial associated

with rhe transaction will flow to the Universiry College.

Intacst inomc

Interesr income is accrued using rhe effective yield method. The effective yield discounrs estimated

future cash receipts rhrough rhe expected life ofthe financial asset co that asset's net carrying emounr.

The merhod applies this yield ro the pnncipal oucscanding to determine interest income each period.

Divid.a&

Dividends or similar distributions musr be recognized when the shareholder's or the Universicy

College's right to receive payments is established.

Rcntal incmrc

Renral income arising from operating leases on investmenc properties is accounted for on a suaight-

line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Brdg.t infor:ution

The origina.l budger for the Current FY was approved by the Nacional Assembly on xxx. Subscquenr

revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific

approvals from the appropriate authoriries. The additional appropriations are added to the original

budget by the Universiry College upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the

final budger. Accordingly, the Universiry College recorded addirional appropriations of IO,064,576

on the 2023 budget following the governing body's approval.
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Nocs to tf,c Financid Satcmcnts (Cootinucd)

Sumrry of Significant Accounting Policics (Cordnrd)

Budga infor'"ti on Gootim.d)

The University College's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual rncome and expendirure

disclosed in rhe Gnancial sraremenrs. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a

classification based on rhe nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget

is prepared on a cash basrs. The amounts in rhe financial statements were recast from rhe accmal basis ro the

cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on rhe same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of

budger and acrual amounrs, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budger, is then presented in the

srarement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addirion ro the Basis difference, adjusrments to

amounts in the financial sratements are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes

adopted for the presentation of the financial starements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile

the actual amounrs on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts and the actuals as per rhe statemenr of financial performance has been presented on page 8 of these

financial statements.

c) Tarcs

Cutrtot incqrr t2r

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authoriries. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount

are rhose that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reponing date in the area where the Universrty

College operates and generates mxable income. Current income tax relaring to items recognized directly in

net assets is recognized in ner assets and not in the stacement of financial performance. Managemenr

periodically evduares positions taken in the rax rerurns with respect to situations in whrch applicable tax

regulations are subjecr to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Notcs to thc Fin:ncid Statcrrrnts (ContnuaQ

Surunary of Sipificant Accounting Policics (Contlnucd)

Dcfttttd ar
Deferred tax is provided using rhe liabiliry merhod on temporary differences between the rax bases of assers

and liabiliries and their carrying amounts for financial reponing purposes at the reponing dare. Defcrred tax

liabilities are recognized for all raxable temporary differences, except in respect of uxable temporary

differences associated with invesrments in conrrolled entities, essociates and interests in joint venrures, when

the timing ofrhe reversal ofthe remporary differences can be controlled and tt is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in rhe foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible

temporary differences, the carry forward ofunused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets

are recognized to the exrenc rhat it rs probable thar taxable profir will be available against which rhe

deductible remporary differences, and rhe carry forward of unused tax ctedirs and unused rax losses can be

urilized, excepr in respecr of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in controlled

enaides, associates and interests rn joinr venrures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it

is probable rhat the remporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be

available againsr which rhe temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred cax assers is reviewed ar each reponing date and reduced to che extcnt that

it is no longer probable rhat sufficienr caxable profit will be available to allow all or pan of the deferred tax

asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized

to rhe exrenr rhat ir has become probable rhat furure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered. Deferred rax assecs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the asset is realized or the liability is setded, ba^sed on mx rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacred ar the reponing dare. Deferred tax relaring ro items recognized outside

surplus or de6cit rs recognized ourside surplus or deficir. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to

the underlying rransacrion in ner assets. Deferred ux assers and deferred tax liabiliries are offset if a legally

enforceable right exists ro ser off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the dcferred

taxes relace to the same raxable Entity and the same taxation aurhority.
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Notcs to drc Financial Satcrrcrrts (ContimrcQ

Summary of Signi6ent Accomtirg Policics (Continud)

&la ax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, excePt:

i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofassets or services is not recoverable from the taxation

authoricy, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as pan ofthe cost ofacquisition ofthe asset or

as pan of the expense item, as applicable.

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount ofsales tax included

The ner amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, rhe taxation authority is included as

part of receivables or payables in the statement of 6nancial position.

d) Invcsmcnt propcrty

Invesrment propertres are measured initrally at cost, rncluding transaction coss. The carrylng amount

includes the replacement cost ofcomponents ofan existing investment property at the time thar cost rs

incurred if the recognition crireria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an

investmenr propeny. Invesrment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at

its fair value ar rhe dare of acquisirion. Subseguent ro initial recognittbn, invesrmenr properties ere

measured using the cost model and are depreciared over an year penod or investment property is

measured at fair value with gains and losses recogniscd rhrough surylus or delici.(cntity a zmcnd

rypmpriatcly based on rtc model adopad) Investmenr propenies are derecognized eirher when they

have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no

fi:ture economic benefir or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the

ner disposal proceeds and rhe carrying amount of the asser is recognized in rhe surplus or deficit in the

period ofde-recognitron. Transfers are made to or from investment propeny only when there is a change

rn use.
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Notcs m t[c Fin ncid Statcocats (CondflroQ

Snrmary of SigpGcant Accounting Policics (Continud)

") 
Propctty, plant aod cqglpmcot

All propeny, plant and equipmenr are stated ar cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Cosr includes expenditure that is directly attnbuuble to the acquisition of the icems. When

significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Encrty

recognizes such pans as individual assets wrth specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Likewrse, when a major inspecrion is performed, irs cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the

planr and equipment as a replacemenr if the recognirion criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

mainrenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-

exchange rransacrion for nil or nominal consideration the asset is inirially measured at ics fair value.

0 lascs

Finance leases are leases rhar rransfer substantially all of the risks and benefirs incidental to ownershrp

of the leased item to the Universiry College. Assers held under a finance lease are capitalized at the

commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased propeny or, if lower, ar the present value of

the frrrure minimum lease paymenrs. The Universiry College also recognizes the associated lease liabiliry

ar the inception of the lease. The tiability recognized is mexured as the present ua.lue of the future

minimum lease paymenrs at initial recognition. Subsequenr to initial recognition, lease payments are

apporrioned beween finance charges and reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate

of inrerest on rhe remaining balance of the liabiliry. Finance charges are recognized as finance cosrs in

surplus or deficit. An asser held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

However, if rhere is no reasonable certainry thar the Entiry wtll obtain ownership of the asset by the

end of the lease term, rhe asser is depreciated over the shoner of rhe esrimated useful life of the asset

and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all rhe risks and benefirs incidental to

ownership of rhe leased item co the University College. Operadng lease paFments are recognized as an

operatlng expense in surplus or deficit on a straightJine basis ovet the lease term.
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Notcs to thc Financial Sutmts (Continucd)

Sumery offunifient Acounting Policia (CmdDud)

g) Inungrtlc assas

Inrangible assets acquired separacely are inrrrally recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transacrion is cheir fair value at the date of the exchange. Following inirial

recognition, inrangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulared amortrzation and accumulated

rmpairmenr losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development cosrs, are

nor capiralized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or de6cit in the period in whrch the expenditure

is incurred. The useful life of the intangible asse* is assessed as either 6nire or indefinite. Inrangible

assets with an indefinite usefirl life are assessed for imparrment at each reponing dare.

h) Rcscard rnd drrdoprrcot costs

The Unrversity College expenses research costs as incurred. Developmenr costs on an individual

project ate recognized as inrangible assets when the Universiry College can demonstrate:

i) The technical feasibiliry ofcompledng the asset so thar the asset will be available for use or

sale,

ii) Its inrention to complete and its ability to use or sell the assec.

iii) How the asset will generate 6.rture economic benefits or service potential

it ) The availability of resources to complere the asset.

v) The abiliry to measure reliably rhe expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cosr less any accumulated amorrization

and accumulared impairment losses. Amonization ofthe asset begins when development is complete,

and the asset is available for use. ]r is amorrized over the period ofexpected future benefit. During the

period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses

recognized immediately in surplus or deficrt.

l9



Bomet University College
A Constituent College of Moi University)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30' 2023

Notcs to 6c Financial Stetcrrrcos (Continucd)

Smrry of Sipl6cent Acroutiog Policic! (Cosdrud)

i) Financirl irutrurum

IPSAS 4I addresses the classificarion, measurement and de-recognrtion of financial assets and financial

liabilities, inrroduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets. Irle

entity does not have any hedge relaa'onships and therefore rhe new hedge accounting rules Aave no impact

on the Company s frnancial statemenrs, A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financia.l

asset of one enriry and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the

entiry measures a financial asset or financial liabiliry at its farr value plus or minus, in the case of a financial

asset or financial liabiliry not ar fair value through surplus or deficit, ransacdon costs that are direcdy

anriburable to rhe acquisition or issue of rhe financial asset or financial liabiliry.

e) Fiaanciel asas

Classifcation of Gnancial assas

The enriry classifies its financial assets as subsequendy measured at amortised cost, fair value through net

assecs/ equiry or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of borh rhe enriry's management model

for financial assets and the conrractual cash flow characteristics of rhe financial asser. A finaocial asser is

measured ar amortiz€d cosr when the financial asset is held within a management model whose objective rs

to hold financial assers in order ro collecr contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial

asset give rise on speciGed dates to cash flows rhar are solely Pa)'ments of principal and interest on the

principal oursranding. A financial asset is measured ar fair valuc rhrough net assets/ equiry if it is held wirhio

the managemenr model whose objective is achieved by borh collecting contracrual cash flows and selling

financial assets and the conrractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thar

are solely paymenrs of principal and inrerest on the principal amount ourstanding. A financial asset shall be

measured at fair value through sulplus or deficit unless it is measured at amonized cosr or fair value through

n.t 
"ssecs/ 

equiry unless an enrir/ has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for panicular

investmenrs in equiry instruments.
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Notcs to tlc Financid Satoncnts (Continucd)

Suurary of Signific.tr Accouating Policics (Cmdnrrcd)

fubscqrcot mcastutma

Based on the busrness model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial assets rnto

amonized cosr or fair value caregories for financial instnrments. Movemen[s in fair value are presenred in

either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain criteria being met.

Amortizcd cost

Financral assets rhar are held for collecrion of contractual cxh flows where those cash flows represent solely

paymenrs of principal and inrerest, and that are not designated at fair value through surplus or deficit, are

measured ar amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrumenr that is subsequendy measured at amortized cost

and is noc pan of a hedging relationship is recognized in profir or loss when the asset is de-recognrzed or

impaired. Inrerest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interesr

rate method.

Fdr v.luc t}r,ilgh n t.ssrs/ cqpity

Financial assets that are held for coflection ofcontractual cash flows and for se[ing the financial assets, where

the assets' cash flows represcnt solely payments of principa.l and interest, are measured at fair value rhrough

net assets/ equity. Movemenrs in rhe carrying amount are caken through net assets, except for the recognrrion

of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized

in sulplus/deficic. Interesr income from rhese inancial assers rs included rn 6nance income usrng the eFFective

interest rate method.

Tredc md othcr rcccivablcs

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible amounts. Trade

and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An estimate is made of doubtful

receivables based on a review of all outstandrng amounts at the year end.
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Notcs to tf,c Financial Statcoats (Condnucd)

Sumary of Slgnificent Accounting Policics (Cootinucd)

F.ir vahrc Arough srcphrs or dcficit

Financial assets rhar do not meet che crireria for amortized cost or fair value through ,,.t.tsem/ equiry are

measured ac fair value rhrough surplus or deficir. A business model where the entity manages financial assets

with rhe objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the assers would result in a fair value

through surplus or deficrr model.

ImpaiEncot

The entiry assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with ics 6nancial

assers carried ar amortized cost and fair value through net assets,/equity. The entity recognizes a loss

allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Cntical estimatcs and significant judgments made by

management in determining the expecred credit loss (ECL) are sec out in Note xx.

b) Finrndd tabilitics

Cldficrtim
The enriry classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amonized cost excePt for financial habilities

measured through profit or loss.

j) Invcotorics

Inventory is measured at cosr upon initial recognition, To the extent that inventory was received through

non-exchange transacrrons (for no cosr or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at

rhe date of acquisition. Coss incurred in bnnging each producr to its present location and condidons are

accounted for, as follows:

i) Raw matenals: purchase cost using the weighred average cost method.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capaciry bur excluding borrowing costs.

After inirial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to the

exrenr rhar a class of invenrory is discributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal cha.ge, that class of

inventory is measured ar rhe lower ofcost and current replacemen! cost. Net realizable value is the estimated

selling pnce in the ordinary course of operacions, less the estimated costs of completron and the estimated
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cosr necessary co make the sale, exchange, or distriburion, Invenrories are recognized as an expense when

deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operacions of rhe Enriry.

Notcs to thc Fiamcid Sutancnts (ContinucQ

Sunxffry of Signific.nt Accounting Policics (Continu.d)

L) Ptovisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entityhas a preseot obligation (legal or construcrive) as a result ofa past

event, ir is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be

requrred ro serrle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of rhe amounr of the oblgation. Where

the Enity expec* some or all ofa provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insutance contract, the

reimbursemenr is recognized as a separate asset only when rhe reimbursement is vrnually certain. The expense

relating ro any provision is presented in che statement of financral performance ner of any reimbursemenr.

l) Sodal B.ndts

Social benefits are cash cransfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households thar meer the

eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of society as a whole. The

entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social bene6t scheme ar the same time that it recognrses

a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at the best estimate ofthe cost (the social

bene6r paymenrs) that the entity will incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liabrlity.

m) Contingcnt 1ifi1iti6

The Enriry does not recognize a contingenr liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes

to rhe financial statements, unless the possibiliry of an outflow of resources embodying economic bencfirs

or service potential is remote.

Conringent Liabilides 2022/2023 zo21/ 2OZZ

Kshs Kshs

Courr Case against the Enrrty I I8,554 4,980,675

Bank Cruarantees in favour ofsubsidiary

Conringent Liabilides arising from contracts including PPPs

Others

TotJs r r 8,554 4,980,675

In the year ended 30 June 2023, rhere was a paymenr ofKshs. 4,862,121 arising from a court ruling
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a) Cairycu
Thc Eniry docs not rccognizc a contingcnt essct but disdoscs dcails ofe possiblc assa whosc

curdngcnt on chc occurrcnce or non-occurrencc ofone or motc uncertein futurc cvcncs nor w within

the concrol of rhe Enuity in thc notes rc rhc financid stetcmcnts, Contingcnt essas erc rssessed

llt

v

vto ensrrc d:et dcvdopmcnts are eppropri:tdy rcflectcd in chc finenciel sBtcmsrts' If it has bccomc

ccrtain that an inflow ofcconomic bencfie ot scrricc potmdd will erirc and dre asseCs valuc cen bc

rdiablT, thc assct and drc reletcd lcvcnuc arc recognizcd in thc finarrid st tcmcnts of thc period

thc clrrngc occurs.

which
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Nacs to 6c Finencid Stat-"cnts (Continuad)

$rmary of Significant Accormtiag Policia (Coodnud)

o) Naarrc and p,rqpo:c of tcscwcs

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requiremerts. Entity to state the reserves

mainrained and appropriate polrctes adopted-

p) Changcs in &ormting policics rnd cstimrtcs

The Endry recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effecrs of changes rn

accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is rmpractical.

q) Ernploycc bcndtr

Rairncnt bcndt ptru

The University College provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribucion

plans are post-employment benefit plans under whrch Unrversiry College pays fixed contributions into a

Moi University Pension Scheme and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay funher contriburions

if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods. The conrriburions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefin are

charged against income in the year in which they become payable. De6ned beneEt plans are post-employment

benefit plans other than defined-concribution plans. The deEned benefit funds are acruarially valued ri-
annually on the projected uoit crcdit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum

pa),ments or increased firture contributrons on proportional bxis to all panicipating employers. The

contributions and lump sum pa)rrnents reduce the post-employment benefit oblgation.

t) Forcip onrarcy truections

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounred for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of the

rransacrron. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reponed at the statement of

financial position reporting date by applyrng the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences aru,ng

from rhe sertlement of credirors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which

rhey were inirially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which

they arise.
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Nccs to thc Financjd Statantots (CmrlnucQ

$uunary of funificaot Accounting Policics (Condnud)

s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against quali$ing assets as part of propeay, plant and equipment'

Such borrowing costs are caprralized over rhe period dunng which the asser is being acquired or constmcced

and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalizarion ceascs when construction ofthe asset is complete. Further

borrowing coscs are charged to rhe statement of financial performance.

t) Rdatcd panics

The Universiry College regards a related pany as a person or an Encity with the ability to exert control

individually or jorntly, or ro exercise significant influence over the Encity, or vice versa. Members o[key

managemenr are regarded as related parties and comprise rte council, rhe Pinctpal and senior managerc

u) Scrricc ccrccssim rrr.ng.frnts

The Enuty analyses a[.] aspecrs of service concession arrangemenrs rhat ir enters in determining the

appropriare accounting treatmenr and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a private party

contributes an asset to the arrangemenr, the Entity recogoizes that asset when, and only when, it contols or

regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and

at whar price. In the case ofassets other than 'whole-ofJife' assecs, ic controls, through ownership, beneficial

enridement or otherwise - any significanr residual interest in che asset at the end of the arrangement Any

assers so recognized are measured ar their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the

Enuiy also recognizes a corresponding liabiliry, adiusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

26



B o met U nive rs ity C o llege
A Constiluent College of Moi University)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Nccs o 6c Finencid Str-.-."! (Coodarcd)

Srmry offuriCcot Accooeog Pdicics (C@tinrcd)

v) CrS od clsh c$riveLotr

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shon-term deposits on call and highly

liquid invesrments with an original maruriry ofthrec monds or less, which are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant nsk of changes in value. Bank accounc balances include

amounts held at the Central Bank ofKenya and at various commercial banks at rhe end ofthe financial year.

For the purposes ofthese financial statements, cash and cash cquivdents also indude short term cesh imprests

and advances to authorised public officers and/or insritutions which were nor surrendered or accounted for

ar rhe end ofthe financial year.

r) Coopdrdvc 6gucs
'Where 

necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured to

conform ro the rcquired changes in presentarion.

r) 9rbccgrat crcotl

There have been no even[s subsequent to rhe fi.nancial year end with a significant impact on rhe financial

statemenm for the year cnded June 30, 2023.
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Notrs m drc Fin:ncial Sutcrcats (CmtftnraQ

Srlnorry of Sigpi6crnt Accouoting Polirica (Conti6!d)

5. Sigpifiat Judgmruts md Sourccs of Estimation Unccrtlcf

The preparation of the Universiry College's financial sratements in conformity with IPSAS requires

managemenr to make judgments, estimares and assumptions thar affect thc rcported amounts of rcvenues,

expenses, assers and liabilities, and rhe disclosure of contingent tiabilides, at the end of the reponing penod.

However, uncertainty abour rhese assumptions and esrimares could resulr in ourcomes that require a matenal

adjustrnent ro the carrying amount of the asser or liabiliry affected in future periods. Srate all iudgements,

estimates and assumprions made:

Frtirruecs 6d 6s1apjl66s

The key assumptions conceming rhe furure and other key sources of estimation uncertainry at the reponing

date, rhat have a significanr risk of causing a material adjustmenr to the carrying amounts of asstrs and

liabilides wirhin rhe nexr financial year, are described below. The Endry based its assumptions and esEmates

on parameters available when the consolidated financial staremenB were prepared. However, cxisring

circumsrances and assumptions about firture developmenrs may change due to market changes or

circumstances ansing beyond che control of rhe Entiry. Such changes are reflecced in the xsumptions when

they occur. IPSAS LI40

Uscful livcs od rcsi&ul valuc

The useful lives and resrdual values of xsets are xsessed using the following indicators to inform Potential

future use and value from disposal:

a) The condicion ofthe xset based on the assessment ofexpens employed by rhe Entity.

b) The narure ofthe asset, irs susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes.

c) The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability of funding to replace the asser.

e) Changes in the marker in relation to the asset

Plovisioru

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimare based on the information available.

Addirional disclosure ofthese esrimates ofprovisions is included in Note I6. Provisions are measured at the

managemenrrs best estimare of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the rePorting date and are

discounted co present value where the effect is material.
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stocks anr{ hr>w rtnnagr'mcnr esttmatt tht'st provrsr<>ns).

Notcs to thc Finencial Statcrncnts (Continued)

Tuition & Rclated Ch

Re istration Fees

DESCruPTI(N 2022t2023 zCAngZ'

l Transfers from olher governments - gifts and
services-in-kind

3t2,249,4t6Operational grant

Supplementary funds for CBA

I l3.l 70.059

Exchequer Grants B/l-'(20 l61201 7)

Totrl 313,r70,059 3na4r,it6

2. Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Rendering of Goods & Services

16,E67,000

39,000,500

1.747.750

BUCSO Registration/

Annual Subscription Fee

450,000

l. r E7.000

Computer [ee I,E75,000

Connectivity Iree 4,7?2,0N
Medical Fcc 3.6E9,500

Examination Fee 1,0E7,000

Amenity Fee 2,0t0.m0
Library Fees 70,000

Supervision Fees t41.000

7,ll 1,000Students Field Trips/C ourses 9,662,000

Privately Sponsored Students Fees 6. t 35.E25 7,086,400

Students Aclivily
Student ID

3,59E,300 3 822 400

529.200 5 5 7,400

Carnes and Sporls 2.166.000 1,674,000

Commission of University Education Fees t61,000 877,000

KUCCI'S Fees t.273,500 1,365,000

Teaching Practice 9,09E,000 7,098,000

Students Projects Charqes

Student Practical's

40.000

21 1,000

Total Studcet Fccr v2.1t3#ts 6q3Dr

3. Other Income:
21 1,420Miscellaneous Income | 32,900

Extemally Generated Funds 5 r 8.601 259,5 70

TotrlOtlcrlsrc 651501 3lc9n0

Tolal Revenue from Exchange Transactions 69,t22,69093,06.t-576
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4. f,mployee costs:

Basic Salaries

Sabatical, Visiting & Adjunct Acadernic Staff

Work Stud Pro ram

160,011,972165,7 ,219.00
68.723,2346E,991.265.00House allowance
22,191,6556,004,364.00Commutin allowance

I E,263, I 7l .00Car Allowance

Sala Arrears
20,226,0522r,049,975.11r Pension contributionEm lo

t,604.078950.760.00Em lo r NSSF Contribution
7,053,6106.839.565.65Gratui contribution
2,191.7742,095,032.0q

2,070,524I,970.027.00

r,920,000t.920,000.00Domestic Workers allowance

Res n sibilit allorvances

Enlertainment allowances

7 ,66'76.792.00Soa Allowance
18,000l t,000.00

3,t35,77 43,0t5,032.00
S cial Du allowance

Tele hone Allowances
412.000432,000.00Professorial Allowances

60.000to.frm.00Medical Risk
480.000E0,000.00F,xtraneous allowance

2,139,0332.725,507.32Acting allowance
188.350e allowancePassa e&ba
879.2001,034,E00.00Annual Leave Travellin
3 88,000964,000.00Book and Journal Allowance
486,000390,000.00Research allowance

l .00 t,470.30 968,165Casuals

2,176,900r,927,EE0.00ClaimsPart Time Teachin
, to )1)Intemshi attachment

88,700t4 t,450.00NITA contribution

Staff Medical Schcme- NHIF Cover
120,000

100,400il 1,000.00

29S,711,9t9305,72sJr0Tot l

5. Remuneration of directors:
9E7.870Chairman's Honoraria

I,424,9302,95E,402

1,320,000

2,5(X,600

Other Allowances

Sining Allowance

Subsistence Allowance

lJ.493o9,770,t72Tot l

6. Depreciation and amortizatioo expense:

992,016972,176Buildings
4, I 69,0q93,t26,824Motor veh icles
1,654,3601,959,162Planl and Equipment
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Extemal Examincrs

Exarr Markin (-'cntre ex nscs

2,568,6 r l
3,090,093

4,136,233

) o)1 )1)Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings

Computers

Intangiblc Asset

2,903,906

Totel r5,853,701 t2,J,6,551

7. Repairs anrl maintenance of Facilities:
Maintenance of Motor veh icles 148.606 828. 198

Maintenance of Plant & Equip ll9.r30 23,910

Maintenance of Computers and Electronics 329.175 207 ,200

Refurbishrnent and Maintenancc of Brrildirgs

lrquipping and Maintenance of Hostels

2.908.442 485.940

Water Supplies (Borehole) & Mainlenance 27 ,550

Maintenance ol'Grounds (fencing), Playgrounds &
Waste Management

Decomrr issioning the Dumpsite

446.470 49.3 5 0

Resettlenrent Action Plan-RAP

TOTAL 4,151,t23 r622,rtlt

8. Contracted Services:

Medical expenses

Comprehensive Motor Vehicle insurance t.136.639 l, I 72,855

934,1t2Group Life Cover 2,370,457

Medical Scheme Staff 14.920.608 \4,270,130

Legal Expenses

Subscriptions 269.805

Sccuritl Services 3,00t,t04 3,040,602

C leaning Services

Sanitary Expenses

3.125.022

39 t,256

2,389,023
,)1 (7<

SnbTotrl 24,952,1ffi 22J,,'.ts2

9- IJse of Goods and Services:

Academic Expenses

Student Field Trips /Courses 402.300

Laboratory Materials 779,360

Developlnenl of Green Academ ic Prograrns

Col laborations and Partnerships
Staff Development (Competence & Research)- Faculty

Examination Materials t,443,041 1.596.000

1,090,000 466,500

173,250

Postal & Teleg rarn expenses

Academic Board

53,1 80 48,,1 10

21,200
-feachin materials

Publishing & printing expenses 94,900 20,000
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BUCSO

SGC Elections and Traini

Le Ex ses

Subscri ions to Professional Bodies

Lib Ex ses r,799,805 643,235

Books and Journals 1,979,334

Newspapers & Magazine t7,621

lJniversi research ramme 2,225,210 1,395,990

Games and S 588,560 552,102

Industrial Attachment 804,600 89,900

Students Activities and Life Skills Enhancement 1,3'72,3t0 s29,480

297,000 447,250

888,255 53,000

Admission E enses 89,950 u,120

Teachin Practice 2,74'1,120

Commission of Universi Education Fees 680,000 895,000

KUCCPS Fees 1,006,s00 1,288,s00

Caution Mo Refund

Student Smart Card S t64,t70

Intemational Student and Staff Exchan e

University Outreach and Extension programmes

Work study program

Equipping and Furnishing Lecture Halls, Multipurpose
Hall and Teaching Offices

Teachin ul ment

User Trainin &.c I Buildin for ERP 210,000

Stakeholder En ement 42,000

Cultural Week/Tamasha 197,000

Counsellin and Mentorshi E3,160

Demonstration Farm r99,7m

r9rt7535 ,qairtr

Administrstive Ex tr3e3:

Medical
Comprehensive Motor vehicle insurance

Group Life Cover

Medical Scheme Staff
398,250

t70,324

Public celebrations and Functions 94,610 17,500

Electrici 1,389,206 r,350,70 r

Water and Sewera 341,897 33 5,056

Travellin & Accomm. s 2,003,930

Tel hone ses & Cash 4,rt,9E6 67 t,554

Intemet Ex ses 3,334,794 3,3 19,839

Purchase of uniform & clothi

Purchase of Stationery 1,33t,475 923,630
5Z



Bomel University College
A Constituent College of Moi University)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Advertisin & Publicit

Public Complains

Transport Expenses

t65.24e 1,162,77 5

540.000540,000Audit fees

Land Rent, Rates & Title Deed Proccssing

Payment of Rent

7 4,060r9.500ICT Operating Expenses

363,000 235,960Cleaning Materials & Detergents

3(H.520 69,840

Purchase of Plant, Equipment and Biological Assets-

Farm

Purchase of rnedical E Sul rnent & Dru

ISO & QA Related Expenses

126,400974,089Seminars and Conferences
144,30067r.520Training Expenses

Staff Devclopment (Competence & Research)-
Administrative

Staff Team Building
316,7E r 44,230Office Expenscs

6t7,478 78.000Strategic Plan lmplementation & Monitoring

Launch of l-ibrarv and MPH

3U,132 584,239Perfonnance Conlracting

40,280Anti-corruption Expenses

27,600National Cohesion and Valucs

40.092Disability' Mainstreaming

Gender Mainstreaming 48.000

t 3,600 12.000Safety and Security

Revaluation of fixed assets

3E,350Branding of BUC Niche
lnternal Communication System-PABX

Procuremcnt of ERP Server
lnstallation of Solar Power Systcm

Payment of outstanding debts

Procurement of Four Wheel Vehicle

Procurement of Bus

366.436 305,202Bank Charges
I,32I.50t 409,20rFuel & Lubricants

95,424Catering Expense

22,500Utensils, Cutlery & Crockery

35,000

1.900

41.500

l7,0l3JE4 r3l3+3r3ls.b Toarl
2rr5r,&7136,(xl,t l9Totb U* olGd rd rrvtca

10. Cash and cash equivalents
265,329,020221,803,17 rCurrent account

Alcohol and Drug Abuse
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BUC CO-OP COLI,ECTION A/C-01 I29359078I0

BUC NBK COLI,ECTION A/C .O] 0602O26847OO

0

221,t03J71 263A29,Mo

a) Cu rrent Accoun(s

Financial institution
200, 144 9.268.5 85

52;189.728 5,652.404

BUC NBK DEPOSIT A/C- ()I07I2043529OO 2.525,604 4,5 88,8 54

BUCNBK PAYMENT A/C. O I60202686400 5,979.495 8, r2 1,8+2

BUC KCB CAPITAI, DEVELOPMENI'A/C-
1219837245

ts2.622.E99 229,045,683

BUC KCB RESEARCH A/C.I2I98]8373 5,93 t,692 1 ,248,019

BUC Mpesa Account 1,753,8()9 t,403,611

S.b. !o0d 22r,t03J7r 26sJf9,O20

I l. Receivables from exchange transactions

Current receivables

Student Debtors 15,232,880 r I , 196,301

Less: I00lo Provision for dottbtlul dents 1,523,288 I , I 19,630

Ndn Gder*. h.. EfrrScTrru.dil. 13,70!),592 r,r{ccil

12. Receivables from Non-exchange transactions

Studcnts Fees paid to Moi University

Outstanding Exchequer Grants-June 2023

Staff Debtors:
Unaccounled lmprest 373,725 2,081,850

Recovery of Basic Salary

Nol Ecdvebke froa No'GBGharCc trrn!r.'tio!! 373,725 2,cfrso

13. Inventories
Stationaries 918, t40 r,061,02e

Cleaning Materials 270,7 40 370,335.00

Maintenance 68,560 76,620.00

Farm Items 76,810

Games and Sports 61,595.00

Drugs and Equipment 10,500 368,954

Branded Items 205,71s

Totrl hvcrtorle. 1J64,750 \r
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14. Current Liabilities
Trade payables 30,s7E,807 85,403,027

Accrued Payroll Expense (CBA) 2,137,940 2,630,323

HELB Control Account 499,309 201,500

CDF Control Account 649,232 1,032,707

Moi University Graduation lncome 322,800 296,000

Fees hepayments 9,75E,64E 9,552,312

Union Dues outstanding 66,031 t10,473

Caution Money 295,500 299,000

Differed Income l,401,154

15. (Xher payebhc- Contirgcnt Liabilides
Construction of Dining Hall and Kitchenette l I E,554 4,9t0,675

15. Provisions

General Provisions 2,176,900 21,E83,267

Provision for Gratuity t9,161,47s t7,2E9,901

Provision for doubtful debts I,l19,630

Provision for Audit Fees 1,794,600 1,254,600

17. Non'Currrrt Lirbitities
Retention Funds - Capital Drn Project 61,839,904 6E,t02,071

Retention Funds- Internal Projects r,931,908 3,113,E06

Retention Funds- ERP System 1,181,488 1,654,493

Caution Money- Term 2,190,000 1,494,200
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Notes to the Finrncirl Ste&nontc (Centilued)
lE. Property, Plent and Equipment

ress for the Finilncial Year 2022/2013.Work in proq ress ectualised in the FY 2021/2023 was Kshs. 41,677 106This has been included in the The Vr'ork in Pro

Particuhrs Land Bulldings
C.pit l In
Progra.s

Mdor
vC drs

Flrnitur.,
Fixturr and
Fltdnga

Pl.nt rnd
Equiptncrtt

Computcr3
Blological
&sct3

Tot l

As at 3o1lh Junc 2021
930,800,000 so,513,OtO 8r3.155270 222t ,196 22,651,N 9,102,6i22 a,971,t 2 r.E57.541,9{7

Depreciation
1,012,262 5,558,799 2,831,43'l 1,137,828 2,988,453 13,t24,772

NGt Book V.lu6 rt
30th Jun.202t 930.&to,o00 a9,60or1t 8t3,155270 16,616,197

1

9120,016 7,96I,7y 5,985,8E11 1,8+1,013,175

Additions
14,329,798 3,598,160 5,270,086 2,734,560 25,932,W

Disposals

Transters/adj ustments

As at 30tfi Juno 2022 9t0100.000 ag,an,8rt 82rrat5,lr58 16,676,397 2r,114,176 1323rrrg, a.720,N r,860,945,779

Depreciation
992,016 4,169,099 2,927,272 1,654,360 2,903,906 12,ffi,654

.t took ValuG tt
30dr Juno 2022 930.800.000 /a8.5OE tOz

8,:l7,495,068 12.fl72!,,, 20,490,90.r 11,s80,t20 5.E15,t33 1,857,299.125

COST AS AT lST
tuLY 2022 93o,too.mo 53.950,000 827,495,06t 32,9|r.853 30,6a3,362 17,r74,1tO 16,989,689 1.910,259,112

Additit a€.
48,525,808 58,000 4,097,577 3,463,024 48,000 56.193,409
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Disposals

Transfers/adjustments

As at 3(Xh Jun. 2023
930,80O,m0 48,608,8o2

475,021,877
12,507,298

20.548,904
15,578,097 9,279,537 48,(xro

Depreciation &
Amortization 972,176 3,',\25.824 2,568,613 1,959,752 3,090,093

N.t Book Vllu.3 rt
30ft June 2023 930,800.mo 17,536,626 876,021,a77 9,380,473 17,980,291 13,718,335 6,18!r,$5 48,m0

1,966,4 921

17,717,68

1,90t,775,066
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Particulars Intangible Assets- ERP SYSTEM

Net Book Values at 30th June 2020 Nil
Additions- Capitalization 16,544,911

Disposals

Transfers/adj ustments

As at 30th June 2020 t6,544,931

Depreciation
Net Book Values at 30th June 2021 16,s44,931

Depreciation

Net Book Values at 30th June 2022 16,544,931

Depreciation 4,136,233

Net Book Values at 30th June 2023 12,408,699

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. Intan ble Assets

21. Events after the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

22. Ultimate and Holding Entity

The Entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under the Ministry

of xxx. Its ultimate pfient is the Govemment of Kenya.

23. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the nearcst Kshs
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APPENDICES

Appendix l: Implementation Status of Auditor-General's Recommendations

Financiel
Year of
Audit

2020D021-
2021/2022
Reference

No. on the

erternal
sudit
Report

Issue / Observations
from Auditor

Management comments
Action by
Management

Status:
(Resolved /
Not
Resolved)

20201202t

Basis for
Conclusion I

Non-Remittance of
Tax Dues

The penalty and the interest on VAT is Ksh 37,821 and Ksh 30,257
respectively owing to an error since BUC is not obligated under VAT.
BUC followed up with KRA to reverse the erroneous charges, and made
a written request for the reversal of erroneous penalties and interest
including removal of the VAT obligation. After KRA clears the VAT
liability in their systems, Itax will enable filing of Pay as You Eam
(PAYE) appeal of May 2019 and the Income Tax penalty appeal for
September 2020.
BUC had informed KRA on 7rh June 2019 about the expected late
payment of salaries and PAYE for May 2019 owing to the delay in
remittance of capitation. Payment of tax was made on l4'h June 2019
and hence the waiver in the system will be removed after the VAT
obligation and penalties stated above is remove

The matter is

still pursued

with KRA.

Not
Resolved

20201202t

Basis for
Conclusion 2

Delayed

Implementation of
Projects

The Contractor is yet to seek Approval for the Extension of Contract
Period from the Project Manager, State Department of Public Works.
Furlhermore, financing of the project has been low and no funds
allocated by the Govemment for the Ongoing Proposed Construction of

There was no

budget

allocation for
the project in

Not
resolved.
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Library Block, 2No. Hostel Blocks Multipurpose Hall and Lecture halls
202112022 and 202212023 Financial Years.

2021/2022 and

2022t2023

Financial
Years. BUC is

pursuing

funding ofthe
project with
the Ministry of
Education,

State

Department of
Higher
Education and

Research.

Not
Resolved

Management is

in the process

of ensuring

that

commissioning

of ERP is

done.

Basis for
Conclusion 3

Payment for
Incomplete No-

Commissioned ERP

System

On 26rh June, 2020, Bomet University College (BUC) executed a
Contract with Appkings Solutions Limited (ASL) for the Supply,
Installation, Testing and Commissioning of an Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP) Software Solution for Bomet University College. The
Consideration for the Contract was a sum of Kshs. 16,544,931 and
payments was made in phases ofperformance as per the contract.
During implementation of the Project, the Contractor's term was
impliedly extended because ofthe need to have all Staff at BUC trained
on the use ofthe said system as this meant that all the staff recruited by
BUC in the year 2021 had to be trained. In addition, COVID-I9
Pandemic hindered the timely completion ofthe said Contract.
The Contract was silent on how and when Commissioning will be done
but currently all the modules are being implemented and improved on
case by case basis based on user suggestions.

2020t2021

Resolved
The Terms of Service for the Senior Management Staff of Bomet
University College are stipulated in the Terms and Conditions ofService
for Senior Managsment Staff which was Approved by BUC Council.

Management

continue to use

existing

Basis for
Conclusion 4

Payment of
Unauthorized

2020/202t
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Allowances to Top

Management

The Management wrote to State Corporations Advisory Committee
(SCAC) seeking for Approval of the BUC Human Resource Policy
lnstruments on l6th November 2021. Further, Circular Ref No.
PSC/LEGI009l2l/544(27) from the Public Service Commission (PSC)
on Employment and Labour Relations Court (ELRC) Petition number.
El6l of202l, advised that Corporations can continue to apply existing
Human Resource Instruments as Approved by their Respective Boards
pending consultations with critical Stakeholders on Policy and Financial
implications of the Court order. Additionally, the SRC undertook a
Compliance Checks on l4th December 2021 and the Allowance for Top
Management as contained in the Terms and Conditions of Service for
Senior Management were submitted for their Review and Ratification,
the Report from SRC is expected to be sent to all Universities and
Constituent University Colleges once ready.

The professorial Allowance of Ksh. 8,000 is a CBA negotiated
Allowance under the Universities Academic Staff Union, (UASU)
which the top Management Staff belong as Professors. (UASU, MU,
CBA 2012-2013, Section,l9,5) under Academic and Professorial
Allowance.

Human

Resource

Instruments as

Approved by

their

Respective

Boards
pending

consultations

with critical
Stakeholders

on Policy and

Financial

implications of
the Court

order.

202012021

Basis for
Conclusion 5

Non-Compliance
with the One-Third

Basic Pay Rule

BUC is cognizant ofthe requirements of Section C.l (3) ofthe Human
Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for the Public Service
dated May, 2016 which states that public officers shall not over-commit
their salaries beyond two thirds (2/3). Presently after salary deductions,
the Payroll Officer runs a Report to check on compliance with the two-
thirds rule before printing the final Payroll for approval.

Presently after
salary

deductions, the

Payroll Officer
runs a Report

to check on

compliance

with the two-
thirds rule

before Payroll

for approval.

Resolved

I
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The Human

Resource

Manual is in

the process of
being
reviewed to be

aligned to the

current
practice in the

sector.

Not
resolved

Appointments by Council in Public Universities and University
Constituent Colleges is from Grade l4 to Grade 16. Grade l7 to Grade
20 is interviewed by Public Service and appointed by the Cabinet
Secretary on recommendation by Council.

Basis for
Conclusion 6

Irregular Staff
Recruitment and

Appointment

2020t2021

Resolved

The staffpaid
the monies to
BTJC.

Basis for
Conclusion 7

Irregular Payment of
Salary to Former

Employee

The overpaid salary of Ksh 601,878 and not Ksh 598,235.90 and of
which the total amount was honoured by the Staffon 7'h June 2022.

2020/2021

The Audit of
2020t2021
Financial Year
was carried
out before
receiving the

OAG
certificate of
20t9t2020
where the

matter had

been dropped.

Resolved
Overpayment of
Salaries to former

Members of Staff

This matter was sufficiently answercd and cleared off in the Audit
certificate of 2019/2020 Financial Year. However, at the time of
concluding the au dit of 202012021 Financial Year, we had not received
the certificate of20l9lZ020 Financial Year.
The decision of BUC Council to recover had not been violated by the
acting Management since the financial implication the period October
2017 to June 2019 and hence it was not practical to recover monies in
January 2019. Moreover, the salaries of the acting Principal and the
acting Deputy Principals had been withheld from January to March 2019
pending the decision of the College Council. During its 1Oft Regular
Meeting, held on 24rh April 2019 Council approved immediate payments
of the withheld salaries for January, February and March 2019, and
without any recoveries. Therefore, Council's Approval was
implemented and salaries withheld paid.

Basis for
Conclusion 8

2020t2021
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2020t2021

Basis for
Conclusion 9

Irregular

Engagement of
Casual Employees

for more than

Twelve Months

The University College disengaged the services of Casual workers and
sub contracted security and cleaning services. However there are only a
few Casual workers who are hired on need basis and on rotation.

Management

is the process

ofoutsourcing
Management

ofGrounds to
enable

deployment of
Staff who

currently
undertake the

task to be

deployed to

offices. This
will limit
engagement of
Casual

workers in
non-routine
and non-core

tasks on need

basis

Not
Resolved

z02t t2022

Basis for
conclusion I

Casual Wages

The University College disengaged the services ofCasual workers and
sub contracted security and cleaning services. However, there are only a
few Casual workers who are hired on need basis and on rotation. The
Council Approved that the University College can engage Casuals
for not more than Sixteen 16 days in a Month. These Casuals are
not engaged for a whole Month but for a maximum of Sixteen ( 16)
Days in a Month as Approved by Council, after which they take a
break.

Management

is the process

ofoutsourcing
Management

ofGrounds to
enable

deployment of
Staff who

Not
Resolved
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currently

undertake the

task to be

deployed to

offices. This

will limit
engagement of
Casual

workers in

non-routine
and non-core

tasks on need

basis

Resolved
Failure to Constitute

Council

Board appointments shall be made in line with Anicle 27 of the
Constirudon of Kenya. The Council members were appoinred on 86

luly,2o22 for a period of Three Years.

Basis for
conclusion 2

2021/2022

Resolved

The Payment of Acting Allowance at l57o of Basic Salary was
guided by: The BUC Internal Appointment And Promotions
Policy For Staff,(Which is also under Review to aligr to other
National Policies): Salaries and Remuneration Commission
(SRC); Allowances Policy Guideline for the Public Service:
Section 2.0 which stipulates that 'Notwithstanding the need to
enhance equity and faimess through streamlining of allowances;
the Commission shell take into account existing contractual
obligations, relevant laws and regulations. Allowances that are
currently being obtained shall therefore continue to be paid
until the Commission issues a further advisory".

Management

has appointed

Staffto
substantive

leadership

positions

Basis for
conclusion 3

Irregular acting
allowance

202v2022

Not
Resolved

In its

Recruitment
Ethnic Imbalance

BUC had a total of One Hundred and Forty-Eight Employees, 66
of them (45%) represent the dominant ethnic community in the

Basis for
conclusion 4

202t/2022
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County. Therefore, focusing on the particular period of
Recruitrnent and Appointrnent, an imbalance may be noted which
is continually rectified by focusing attention on groups that have
lower representation, without overlooking other already cited
critical constitutional requirements

and

Appointment
processes,

BUC strives

to strike a

balance

between

meritocracies

, ethnic and

Gender

diversity in
order to
achieve its
Strategic goal

to develop,

maintain and

retain vibrant
Academic
and non-

Academic
Human

Resource for
sustainable
performance

and growth
of the
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University

College.

202U2022
Basis for
conclusion 5

Non implementation

of e procurement

E procurement

is currently

being
implemented

Resolved

None
Not
Resolved

Basis for
conclusion 6

Stalled and

incomplete projecr

The Proposed Construction of Library Block, 2No. Hostel Blocks
Multipurpose Hall and Lecture halls in Bomet University College
is the first Capital Development Project Approved for
implementation and Commenced on 8th November, 2016 under
Moi University in Bomet University College.
The Project was later Handed Over to Bomet University College
by Moi University in 2018.
The overall physical progress is at 52% with physical progress for
individual Blocks being; Tuition Block 98%, Library 72%, MPH
92%o, Hostel 6%\.T\e Contract Period has been Revised three
times with the Latest extension running up to 2nd August, 2021 and
the Contractor is yet to seek Approval for the Extension of
Contract Period from the Project Manager, State Department of
Public Works. The Project received funding from the Exchequer
for the Financial Years 201612017, 201712018, 201812019,
2019 12020, 2020 12021 all totaling Ksh 757,850,000. However,
Funds were not allocated by the Govemment for Project in the
Financial Yeus 202112022 utd 202212023. The contractor did not
request for contract extension period. The Project Manager State
Department of Public Works guided Bomet University Council on
the matter

2021/2022

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor.
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AppendL II: Projects implemented by Bomet University College

Projects implemented by the Bomet University College Funded by the Govemment.

Construction of I No Tuition Block, INo Library, INo Multipurpose Hall and 2No Hostels. I065I0I,100 GoK 3yrs t,39r,982,+69 Yes

Construction of Administration Block, Lecnrre Thearre and Associated Works I065I0I,100 GoK 3yrs rro,425,696 Yes

a
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,
I

a

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status ofproject completion at the end of each quarter, i.e. total costs incurred, stage which the project is etc.)

GoKt.39t.982.469 774,498,239 s2% 0 0I Consmrction of I No
Tuiaon Block, INo Library,
INo Multipurpose Hall and

2No Hostels
GoK3r.725.M7 4oo/o 59,430,548 I0,000,0002 Consmrcdon of

Administration Block,
Lecmre Theare and

Assochted Wo*s

1ro,+25,696

I
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Appendir V- Inter-Entity Conlirmrtion l-tter

BOMET T NTVERSITY COLLEGE (BUC)
(A Constitucnt College of Moi Univenity)

OFFICE OF TIIE PRINCIPAL

Email: principal@buc.ac.ke P. O. Box 707-2M00
BOMET

Bomet University College/ wishes to confirm the amounts disbnrsed to you as at 306 June 2023 as indicated in the table below. Please compare the amounts
disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp this request in the space provided and
return it to us.

a

Amounts Disbursed by State Departrnent ofHigher Education and Research
(KShs) as at 30 June 2023

Date Disbursed Recurrent (A)Reference
Number

Development (B) Inter-Ministerial
(c)

Total
(D)<A+B+C)

Amount Received by
Bomet University

College
(KShs) as at 30n

June 2023
G)

Differences
(KShs)

(F):(D-E)

27-06-23
26,097,505.00 26,097,505.00 26,097,505.00 0

26,097,s05.00
09-06-23

26,097,505.00 26,097,505.00 0

9
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{'

I

026,097,505.00 26,097,505.00
05-05-23

26,097,505.00

26,097,505.00 026,097,505.00
t4-04-23

26,097,505.00

026,097,505.00 26,097,505.0026,097,505.00
t'7t03/2023

026,097,505.0026,097,505.00
03-02-23

26,097,505.00

026,097,50s.0026,097,505.00 26,097,505.00
30-12-22

026,097,505.00 26,097,50s.00
09-12-22

26,097,505.00

26,097,505.00 026,097,505.00 26,097,505.00
t0-1r-22

26,097,505.00 026,097,505.00
03-10-22

26,097,s05.00

25,000,000.00 02s,000,000.00 2s,000,000.00
t0-09-22

026,097,505.00 26,097,50s.0026,097,505.00
08-09-22

26,097,505.00 026,097,s05.00
03-08-22

26,097,505.00

0338,170,059.00313,170,059.00 25,000,000.00 338,170,059.00Total

I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

Dare 28.08.2023

Head of Accountsnts depertment of be eliciary Entity:

Neme: [,orine Obon si n ....,..
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